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IN TR O D U C TO R Y SEC TIO N 



Decem ber 15. 1999 

l lonorable Harry Lee 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
Gretna, Louisiana 

Dear Sheriff Lee 

"]'he Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Offi ce (the "Sheriff") for the 
year ended June 30, 1999 is hereby subm itted. 

Slate statutes (LRS 24:513) require that the Sheriff issue a report on its financial position and activity on an annual 
basis and that this report be audited by an independent finn of certified public accountants. W e believe the 
information, as presented herein, is accurate in all m aterial aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to set 
forth fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and results of operations of the Sheriff as measured and 
reported by the financial activity of its various flmds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable readers to gain an 
adequate understanding of the Sheriff's financial affairs have been included. Responsibility fbr the CAYR rests 
w ith the management of the Sheriff. 

DESCRIPTIO N O F TH E CAFR 

To facilitate the understanding of the Sheriff's financial affairs, the CAFR is divided into four sections 

Introductory - which includes the table of contents, this transm ittal letter, a copy of the most recent GFOA 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, a listing of the Sheriff's principal 
officials, and organizational charts; 

Financial - which includes the independent auditor's report, the "general purpose" financial statements and 
footnotes, the combining and individual fund and account group statem ents and schedules, and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal, state and local awards; 

Statistical - which includes financial and dem ographic information on the Sheriff and the Parish of 
Jefferson on a m ulti-year basis. The inform ation in this section is presented for analytical purposes only 
and is not audited; 

Single Audit - Due to the am ount of funding received from the federal government, the Sheriff is also 
required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conform ity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 

1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, andNon-Profit Organizations. Information related to the single audit, including the 
independent auditor's reports on intern al controls and compliance, and a schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, if any, are included in the Single Audit Section of the CAFR. 

Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office P.O . Bo
lx-327 ~ G retna

, La. 70054 ~ (504) 363-5500 



I)ESCRIPTIO N O F TItE "REPO RTING ENTITY" 

As discussed in the notes to the financial statements, as the local governing authority, the Jefferson Parish Counc 
(the "Parish") is considered to be the primary government of the parish, tlowever, for a number of reasons, the 
Sheriff is not considered to be a com ponent unit of the parish and, therefore, issues a "stand-alone" report. 

Some of the reasons for not including the Sheriff as part of the Parish reporting entity include: 1) the Sheriff is 
legally separate from the Parish, 2) the Sheriff is a separately elected official elected by the citizenry in a general 
popular election, 3) the Parish can neither impose its will on the sheriff nor does the Sheriff provide significant 
benefits or burdens to the Parish, and 4) the Sheriff is not fiscally dependent on the Parish. 

"/'he financial reporting entity of the Sheriff includes all of the funds and account groups, as well as com ponent 
units, for which he is financially accountable. As such, the operations of the Law Enforcem ent District of Jefferson 

Parish, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the Sheriffand is included (i.e., blended) within 
the Sheriff's financial report. Additionally, the collections and disbursements handled by the Sheriff in his capacity 
as the Ex-Officio Tax Collector of Jefferson Parish are reported within the Sheriff's financial statem ents as an 
Agency fund. 

JEFFERSO N PAR1Stl ECO NO M IC CO NDITIO N AND O UTLO O K 

Jefferson Parish is located in the southeastern part of Louisiana and is adjacent to the City of New Orleans. W ith a 
population of nearly 453,000, the Parish is a major part of the new Orleans metropolitan economy. Although the 
oil and gas industry has recently taken a turn for the worse, it no longer dom inates the local economy as it did in the 
1980's. It's down-tam , therefor, is not as harsh to the local economy as it was in the 1980's. Diversification 
continues to protect the local economy from the boom-to-bust swings. Tourism , gam ing, construction, 
transportation, chem icals, shipbuilding, and health-care continue to m ake up a large part of the local economy. 

The results of this diversification can be seen in the econom ic statistics. Despite a relatively stable population leve 
per capita income rose to $22,912, the third highest in the state. Assessed property values rose from $2.217 billion 
to $2.271 billion. The strength of Jefferson Parish's economy is further reflected in the increases seen in 
com mercial construction perm its, office space occupancy rates of nearly 95 percent, and retail space occupancy at 
92 percent. 

During 98/99, new employment records were being set as the unemployment rate dipped to 3.30 percent. Avondale 
Shipyards and Ochsner Hospital continue to lead the parish in private employm ent. The Jefferson Parish Public 
School System continues to lead the area in public employment. Gam ing also continues to be a boon to the local 
econom y. In addition to video poker, two of the 
m ost successfnl riverboats in the New Orleans 
area are operating within Jefferson Parish. The 
resulting taxes and fees have provided a boost in 
revenues to m ost of the local governments. 

O VERVIEW  O F CRIM E STATISTICS 

As you are well aware, the results of our efforts 
can be tracked in many ways. Som e of the best 
in dicators of the success of the office are the 
standard crime statistics published in the FBI 

Uniform Crime Report (UCR). In Jefferson 
Parish, crime has been held in check for the most 
part. The most telling proof of this is seen in the 
crime rate per 1,000 residents. As can he seen in 
the graph to the right, the rate has fallen over the 
past 5 years. 
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An effort to increase traffic control and 
enforcem ent resulted in a sharp increase in the 
number of traffi c tickets issued in 97/98. W hile 
a drop-off is seen in 98/99, the num ber of tickets 
issued is still up considerably over prior years. 

Another popular performance m easure for law 
enforcement agencies is response tim e. The 
average response tim e for em ergency calls 
received by the Sheriff's Office continues to be 
held to approxim ately 5 m inutes. By m ost law 
~nforcem erd standards, this is an excellent mark. 

M AJO R IN I'I'IATIV ES 

Thc total munber of crimes in Jeffcrson 

Parish continues to decrease (scc graph) 
Calls for service also decreased from 
326,293 to 316,049 in 98/99. 

One of the m ost interesting points about 
this graph is how the drop in crim es 
coincides w ith the roll forward of the 
property tax m illage in 1991 and the 
implem entation of the 1994 1/4 cent 
sales tax dedicated to the Sheriff's 
Offi ce. It appears that at least part of the 
reason for the drop in crim e is a direct 
result of these tax dollars being put to 
work. 

For tile Year. During the year a number of projects were initiated and/or completed by the Sheriff's Office 

The 800 M HZ Radio System became a reality in 98/99. W ith all major construction complete, the radio 
system went live in Decem ber 1998. This is the first digital system in the State of Louisiana and one of the 
most sophisticated system s in the United States. 

During 98/99, the Sheriff's Office spent $7,794,234 out of the Communications Reserve Capital Project 
Fund on this project. To date, the Sheriff has transferred $11,000,000 from the General Fund to pay for the 
new system. This money was dedicated to this project out of the 1994 1/4 cent sales tax. W e also were 
able to secure a $3,000,000 appropriation from the federal government in the form of a COPS Technology 
grant. This money was prorated betw een the Sheriff's Office and the m unicipalities in the area so that they 
could purchase radios com patible with our new system . 

An additional phase of the project involves data transfer capability. This will allow each deputy to have a 
laptop computer in his/her car to access criminal history and other data. W e have designated $3,000,000 of 
the General Fund's Fund Balance to this project. We also have received another COPS Technology grant 
for $3,300,000 for this project. The laptops went into use in the fall of 1999. 
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She Project STAR ~Survey residence, !arget s, iotators, Arrest and enhance Prosecution, and Rejuvenate 
neighborhoods through Community Oriented Policing) grant came to an end on June 30, 1998, however, 
the project itself has continued with the Sheriff picking up 100 percent of the cost of the 28 deputies hired 
under the grant. This program is designed to take a proactive approach to drug trafficking integrated w ith a 
comm unity policing strategy aimed at addressing the needs of com munities where drug use and violence is 
concentrated. The program attacks violence and drug activity in these neighborhoods and provides for 
"after-care" to m aintain the neighborhood once the Iargeted individuals have been removed. During 98/99, 

approximately $700,000 was expended on this project. 

Due to the success of the Project STAR program, the Sheriff's Office was awarded a COPS M ORE 
"Technology" grant from the U.S. Department of Justice for $2.5 million to provide computers/radios for 
deputies' cars as pan of the 800 M HZ radio upgrade discussed above. The grant calls for a 75/25 split, 
whereby the federal government will provide $1.875 million and the Sheriff's Office will provide 
$675,000. Approximately $874,336 was spent during 98/99 on designing the system as well as buying 
equipment (laptop computers) to be installed in the deputies' cars. The system went on-line in fall 1999. 

Beginning in January 1997, the Sheriff's Office dedicated the proceeds of its state video poker allocation to 
the Parish of Jefferson to help pay for the construction of a new Parish jail. The proceeds will be 
dedicated for a period of 42 m onths. During 98/99, approximately $1,545,000 was received and rem itted 
to tile Parish. 

Continuation of the implementation of the A FIS (Automatic Fingerprinting and Identification .System) 
program. The goal of this project is to electronically capture the fingerprint at the moment of arrest, to 
idcntify the arrested individual, check for any outstanding warrants or attachments throughout the state, 
and to update the crim inal history record, all within five m inutes. The Sheriff's Office is one of five fully 
functional rem ote sites and, as such, will have fingerprint technicians to handle quality control and m ake 
positive identifications for the Southeast Region of the State. During 98/99, the State reim bursed the 

Sheriff's Office approximately $277,000 for salaries and other development costs related to this project. 

Continuation and expansion of the "High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area" (HIDTA) cooperative 
agreem ent w ith the Office of National Drug Control Policy. "HIDTA's" are regions identified as having 
the m ost critical drug trafficking problem s in the U.S. This agreement is designed to prom ote more 
effective coordination of drug control efforts along file Gulf Coast areas of Louisiana, M ississippi, and 
Alabama. W hile we are designated as the lead agency in the program, it is truly a joint effort of several 
law enforcement agencies. The 1999 grant program was expanded and approximately $1,245,000 was 
spent on the HIDTA program s. 

For the Future. Various projects are in the works for the upcoming years. A recap of the major ones is as follows 

Plans are still underway to provide additional office space for the W estbank adm inistrative depallments. 
A purchase agreement was signed recently for the purchase of a 5 story office complex on the W estbank of 
the Parish for $3,400,000. W e anticipate being able to consolidate several of our Eastbank and W estbank 
offices into this one complex, resulting in future cost savings. During 98/99, an additional $500,000 was 
transferred from the General to the Capital Project fund for this project. 

A new firing range is also in the works. W e have drafted prelim inary plans to locate a range on som e 
property owned by the W est Jefferson Levee District. The plans have been subm itted to the U .S. Army 
Corps of Engineers for review and approval. Other sites are also being investigated. $1,500,000 has been 
set aside in a Capital Project fund for this project. 

Plans are also being formulated to address the additional 150 deputies that are expected to be hired in the 
year 2000 to man the new Parish Jail expansion. W e have budgeted approximately $3.7 million in 
salaries and benefits for 99/00, assuming the jail opens on schedule in early 2000. Additional sources of 
financing the future costs of operating the jail are also under consideration. 
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FINANC IAL INFO RM ATIO N, M ANAG EM ENT AND CO NTI~.O L 

NTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAl, AN [) COM PLIANCE M ATq'ERS 

The managem ent of the Sheriff is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed 
to ensure that the assets of the Sheriff are protected from loss, theft or m isuse and to ensure that adequate accounting 
data are com piled to alh~w for the preparation of financial statements in conform ity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The internal control structure of the Sheriff is designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost 
of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits required 
estimates and judgments by management. 

Also, as a recipient of federal, state, and local financial assistance, the Sheriff is responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate intern al control structu re is in place to ensure and docum ent com pliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to these program s. As part of the single audit described earlier, tests were m ade of the Sheriff's 
im em al control structure and of its compliance with applicable laws and regulations and grant program s. The 
results of these tests are outlined in the independent auditor's reports found in the Single Audit Section of the 
CA FR. 

BUDGETARY CONTROI,S 

In addition, as required by State statutes (LRS 39:1304), the Sheriff has formally established budgetary controls 
over his operating funds (i.e., the General Fund and all Special Revenue funds, except for the federal grant funds). 
The level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations) is at the 
"fund level". To supplement budgetary cqntrols, the Sheriff m aintains an encum brance accounting system as part of 
its general ledger system . All unencum bered appropriations lapse at year end. Open encumbrances are reported as 
reservations of fund balances at June 30. 1999. 

FINANCIAL IN FORM ATION 

The accounts of the Sheriff are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The individual funds account for the resources allocated to them for the purpose of 
carry ing on specific activities in accordance with 
th e budget, special regulations, restrictions, or 
lim itations. 

For reporting purposes, the funds are grouped into 
"fund-types". The following is a brief analysis of 
the condition and operating results of the Sheriff's 
various funds. 

G overnm ental Funds. The Governmental funds 
include the general operating funds of the Sheriff 

(i.e., the General Fund, Special Revenue funds, 
Debt Service funds, and Capital Project funds). 
Overall, as the graph shows, revenues of the 
Governm ental Funds have increased dram atically 
over the past 5 years. 

The prim ary reason for the increase over tile past 
few years is the I/4 cent sales tax which went into 
effect January 1, 1994. Addedtothe I/8cent 
already dedicated to the Sherifl, we received a total of $15,974,000 for 98/99. This amounted to an increase in sales 
taxes of $475,000 or 3. I percent. 98/99 also saw a sharp increase in intergovernmeutal revenues (ie., grauls). 
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Overall, the current year saw an increase in revenues of $6,609 million or 8.2 percent. Presented in the table below 
is a current year to prior year comparison of the Sheriff's revenues (expressed in thousands): 

1999 1998 

Revemles Amotlnl 
percent 
of Total 

Amount of 
Increase 
(Decrease) 

Perccntof 
hlcrease 
(1)ectease) 

]axes 

h~tcrgovcrnlllental 

Service charges, fees, and 
commissions 

Interest 

M iscellaneous 

TOTAL 

28,587 

17.805 

36.008 

1,097 

1,500 

1.776 

329% $ 

205% 

41 5% 

1.3% 

1.7% 

2.1% 

718 

4.132 

.971 

13 

130) 

(95) 

Explanations for the variances noted are as follows 

The $718,000 increase in tax revenues is due to the increase in sales taxes, as explained above, and a sma 
increase in property taxes (see the graph below)- 

lntergovernmental revenues are up $4,132,000 for a variety of reasons: 11 Federal grants increased 
$4,590,000 due prim arily to the COPS M ORE and COPS Technology grants, the Local Law Enforcem ent 
Block Grant, and the ttlDTA grant, and 2) $843,000 of reimbursements for housing state prisoners at the 
Parish Correctional Cenler were reclassified to Service Charges for 98199, 3) Video poker commissions 
increased $134,000 as the number of machines in the Parish increased to 1,153, 4) Airport details dropped 
by approximately $175,000 due to cutbacks, and 5) reimbursed salaries were up $269,000 due to additiona 
cooperative agreements with Parish and other agencies. 

Service charges, fees and 
comm issions increased by 
$1,971,000 prim arily due to 
the increases seen in the 
overall sales tax collections 
(the Sheriff's Office receives a 
comm ission on the taxes 
collected, thus, as sales taxes 
go up, our com m issions go up 

as well). Commissions on 
fines and forfeitures also 
accounted for some of this 
increase, rising nearly 
$262,000 in 98/99. $843,000 
for housing sta'~e prisoners has 
also been reclassed to this line- 

item for 98/99 (see comments 
on lntergovem m ental revennes 

above). 

-6- 



Interest income dropped by $130,000 due to declining interest rates during the middle and later parts of the 
fiscal year. The majority of the portfolio is currently being kept in the NOW accounts (earning 30 basis 
points over the average 91 day T-Bill or in the Louisiana Asset M anagement Pool. 

M iscellaneous revenues were down $95,000 primarily due to decreases in public assignments (down 
$55,000) and subrogation claims (down $73,000). 

The expenditures oflhe Sheriff also saw a substantial increase over 97/98 Expenditures increased by $7.058 
m illion or 9.1 percent. A com parison of expenditures for the current and prior year is presented in tile following 

tablc (expressed in thousands): 

Expend;lure/Function Amount 
Percent 
of Total Amount 

Amount of 
Increase 
(Decrease) 

Pcrccnlof 
Increase 
(Decrease) 

Current 

Community Services 

Employee Programs 

Intcrgovem menlal 

Debt Service 

TOTAL 

462 

81,423 

4 

1,554 

885 

0.5% $ 

96.6%  

0.0% 

18%  

I1% 

495 $ 

74.482 

41 

88 

(33) 

6,94l 

3 

143 

4 

66% 

9.3% 

3000% 

lO I%  

04%  

Explanations for the variance noted are as follows 

Public Safety Functional expenditures increased for various reasons - 1) an across the board 5 percent raise 
was given on January 1, 1999, thus increasing salaries by approximately $1,175,000; 2) the premium to the 
Group Health Fund was decreased on July 1, 1998, resulting in a decrease of $568,000; 3) capital outlay in 
the General Fund increased $3,300,000 due to more vehicles being purchased this year than last; and 4) the 
800 Mltz Radio project incurred $3,435,000 more in expenditures than last year as the project was pushing 
to com pletion. 

lntergovern m ental expenditures represent that portion of the state video poker allocation which was 

dedicated by the Sheriff to the Parish's "Jail Study and Construction" project. This remittance to the Parish 
began in January 1997 and will end in June 2000 (this represents a six month extension over last year). 
The expenditure increased because the revenue from the state increased. 

Internal Service Funds. The Sheriff maintains four internal service fnnds to account for its risk n~anagement 
activities. The two main fimds are the Auto Loss and Genera/Liability fund and the Group Health and Life 
Insurance fuad. 

The Auto Loss and General Liability fund is funded through subsidies (i.e., "premiums") from the General Fund. 
At June 30, 1999, this fund had a retained earnings of $2,353,000, after accruing $4,631,000 for claims and 
judgments payable. As can be seen in the following graph, this fund has experienced a few large claims losses over 
the past few fiscal years, however, during 98/99, it actually recognized a decrease in claim s and the related reserves 
One of the main reasons for the decrease is that we have a m uch better handle on our loss reserves since contracting 

with Creative Risk Controls, Inc. (CRC) to administer our claims. The loss reserves are reviewed monthly for 
reasonableness and sem i-annual meetings with the attorneys and CRC allow for closer m onitoring of the reserves. 
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The Group ltealth and Life 
Insurance fund accounts for both 
em ployee and em ployer 
contributions to the plan. At June 
30, 1999, this fund had a positive 
retained earnings of $5,342,000, 
after accruing liabilities of 
$2,212,672 for claims payable. 

This fund continues to experience 
problem s with its third-party 
adm inistrators. A new TPA was 
selected via the Request for 
Proposal process and began 
processing claim s on January 1, 
1999. As of June 30, 1999, they 
have still not gotten caught up in 
paying prior claim s, thus, there is a 
significant lag at year end in the 
claims payable. The result was an 
increase in the claims payable at year end of approximately $845,000 

As noted earlier, the General Fund reduced its prem ium to the Group Health fund by 18 percent effective January 
1999. Thus, revenues to the Group Health Fund decreased by approximately $600,000. 

Agency Funds. The Sheriff m aintains several agency funds in order to aecount for m onies collected on behalf of 
others. The two prim ary funds are the Tax Collector fund and the Sheriff's Accomtt fund. 

The Tax Collector fund accounts for the distributions to taxing agencies of monies collected for property taxes, sales 
taxes, licenses and perm its, fines and forfeitures, and other m iscellaneous items in the Sheriff's capacity as Ex- 
O fficio Tax Collector. 

Over tile past 5 years, the collections in this fund have increased significantly. During 98/99, the Tax Collector fund 
received $498,636,000 and disbursed $495,350,000 to the various taxing bodies in the parish. 
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Th e majority of the increase in collections 
over 98/99 is seen in the fines, property tax, 
and sales tax collections. These collections 
increased $1,278,000, $7,299,000, and 
$12,166,000, respectively. These increases 
were realized by all participating agencies in 
the Parish. 

The Sheriff's Account Agency fund received 

$10,049,973 in garnishments and judicial sales 
and disbursed $9,882.327 to the applicable 
litigants, defendants, attorneys, and appraisers 
These are increases of $267,000 and $76,000, 
respectively. 



Debt Adm inistration. Keeping with the Sheriff's longstanding policy of funding operations currently, at year-end, 
tile Sheriff had only one bond issue outstanding. These Certificates of Indebtedness were originally issned in 1991 

by the Law Enforcement District to provide funding for major capital outlays and improvements. During 92/93, the 
outstanding debt was refunded in order to take advantage of more favorable interest rates, as well as to free up 
$600,000 held in reserve. At June 30, 1999, $805,000 of these certificates were outstan ding, maturing in April 2000 
and bearing interest rate of 5.35 percent. 

Overall, the annual debt service requirem ents, including principal and interest, of the Sheriff for the next year will 
be $848,000. The net debt per capita and ratio of debt service expenditures to General Government expenditures 
continue to show a downward trend, dropping to $1.00 and $1.01, respectively. 

Cash M anagem ent. In M arch 1999, the Sheriff's Office signed a new fiscal agent agreement which will continue 
to provide significant benefits to the Sheriff's Office. In addition to increasing the interest rate paid on the NOW  
accounts, the reserve requirem ents continue to be elim inated. In addition, effective April 1, 1999, the Sheriff began 

pooling the cash from all of its funds (except Tax Collector, which maintains its own pool) in order to take 
m axim ize its earn ing potential. Thus, the Sheriff earns interest on 100 percent of its daily pooled cash balances. 

The Sheriff currently has two options 

concerning idle cash: 1) invest it in statutorily 
allowed securities or 2) allow it to stay in NOW 
accounts earning interest at a rate of 30 basis 
points above the 91 day Treasury Bill rate (this 
is an increase of 1 basis point over the prior 

contract). 

During 98/99, we started the year off investing 
m ost of our idle funds in U .S. Government 
securities, however, by the spring of 1999, the 
rates had fallen to fire point where it was more 
beneficial to invest in the Louisiana Asset 

M anagement Pool (LAM P) and/or the NOW 
accounts. At June 30, 1999, the investment 
portfolio was $15,527,000 which is 
$11,487,000 less than last year. As the rates go 
up, we expect to start investing in the m arket 
again. 

As a result of the decline in rates during the 
year, tile interest incom e earned by the Govern mental Funds dropped by $131,000. Overall, income is still much 
higher then in 1996 when we started our investment program . 

State statutes require the Sheriff to have his deposits insured or collateralized at a rate of 100 percent at all times. 
During 98/99, this requirem ent was complied with at all tim es. As of June 30, 1999, the Sheriff had deposit 
balances of $59,894,000 in the lowest credit risk category defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). The investment portfolio consisted solely of investments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP), a state sponsored external investment pool, and are therefor not categorized according to risk categories. 

Risk M anagem ent. As noted earlier, the Sheriff m aintains four intern al service funds to account for its risk 

management activities. The first major fund is the Auto Loss and General Liability fund. To protect against these 
risks, the Sheriff participates in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk M anagement Program (a public entity risk pool). 
Under this program, general/professional liability claims are covered by insurance at the rate of $100,000 per claim, 
with an aggregate stop-loss of $500,000 for each loss year. Tile aggregate stop-loss coverage was only $300,000 for 
96/97 and prior years. Excess liability coverage is in effect for losses reported up until August 31, 1990. No excess 
coverage is available for losses reported after that date, thus, once the aggregate is m et, the Sheriff is completely 
self-insured on general/professional liability cases. 
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For the majority of auto loss claims, it is the policy of the Sheriff not to purchase commercial or other insurance for 
the risks of loss to which it is exposed. Thus, the Sheriff is 100 percent self-insured. 

"['he second major fund is the Group Health and Life Insurance fund. Under this program, which is administered by 
a service agent, the Sheriff is self-insured for its claim s reported during the year up to the "stop-loss" amount of 
$ 100,000 per person. Excess liability for claims over the stop-loss amount up to $1,000,000 is provided for through 
a commercial insurance carrier. Contributions into this fund are made by participating employees and are m atched 
by the Sheriff based on the employee's classification. At June 30, 1999, a liability of $2,212,672 has been accrued, 
which represents the am ount of claims reported to the service agent but not yet paid. "['he fund has assets of 
$7,563,046 at June 30, 1999 available to pay these claims. 

The claims liability is up significantly due to a change in third-party administrators (TPA's) on January 1, 1999. 
The new TPA is still catching up on paying outstanding claims from the previous TPA, thus the liability for incurred 
but not paid/reported claims was raised. This situation is expected that to be cleared up by the end of the next fiscal 

year. 

O TItER INFO RM ATIO N 

Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. Such an 
audit has been perform ed and the opinion of the auditing fiml on the Sheriff's financial statem ents is included in the 
Financial Section of this report. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, an unqualified or "clean" opinion was 
issued. 

Awards. The Governmental Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Jefferson Parish Sheriff for its June 30, 
1998 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government unit must publish an  easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to 
program standards. Such reports m ust satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirem ents. 

A Certificate of Achievem ent is valid for a period of one year only. W e believe our current report continues to 
conform In the program requirements and we are subm itting it to the G FOA. 

Acknowledgm ent. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient an d 
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Comptroller, Accounting, and Administrative departments. W e would 
like to express our appreciation to all members of the departm ents who assisted and contributed to this year's audit. 
Finally, credit should be given to you, Sheriff Lee, for your continued interest and support in planning and 
conducting the financial operations of the Sheriff's Office in a dedicated and responsible manner. 

ectfutly subm itted, 

Newell D. Norm and 
Comptt oiler 

Paul C. Rivera, CPA 
Intern al Auditor 
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M ichael Cyprian 
Accounting Director 
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FIN A N C IA L SEC TIO N 



R EBOW E & C OM PANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

CO N SU LTA N TS 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPO RATION 

3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 . P.O. Box 6952 * Metairie, LA 70009 
Phone {504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

IN D EPEN D EN T A U D ITO R S' R EPO R T 

The Honorable Sheriff Harry Lee 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
G retna, Louisiana 

W e have audited the accom panying general-purpose financial statem ents of the Jefferson Parish 
Sheriff, Gretna, Louisian a as of and for the years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, as listed in the 
Table of Contents. These general-purpose financial statem ents are the responsibility of the 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff's m an agem ent. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
general-purp ose finan cial statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standar ds an d the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Com ptroller General of the United States. Those stan dards require that we plan an d perform 
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan cial statem ents are free of 
m aterial m isstatem ent. A n audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
am ounts and disclosures in the financial statem ents. A n audit also includes assessing the 
accoan ting principles used and significan t estim ates m ade by m anagem ent, as w ell as  evaluating 
the overall finan cial statem ent presentation. W e believe that our  audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the general-purp ose finan cial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all 
m aterial respects, the finan cial position of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff as of June 30, 1999 and 
1998, an d the results of its operations for the years then ended in conform ity with generally 
accepted accountin g principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
D ecem ber 17, 1999, on our consideration of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's internal control over 
financial reporting an d our tests of its com plian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts an d gran ts. 



O ur audits w ere perform ed for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the general-purpose 
financial statem ents of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff taken as a whole. The com bining, individual 
fund and individual account group financial statements and schedules for the years ending June 
30, 1999 and 1998 listed in the accom panying table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purp ose financial statem ents. In 
addition, the accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State, an d Local Awards for 
the year ending June 30, 1999 is presented for purposes of additional an alysis as required by the 

U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general-purp ose financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the general-purpose financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all m aterial 
respects, in relation to the general-purpose finan cial statem ents taken as a whole. 

The statistical data listed in the Table of Contents is presented for purp oses of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the general-purpose statem ents of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff. Such 

information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general- 
purpose finan cial statem ents, and accordingly, w e express no opinion on it. 

The year 2000 supplem entary inform ation on page 53 is not a required part of the basic financial 
statem ents but is supplem entary inform ation required by the Govern m ental Accounting 
Standards Board. W e have applied certain lim ited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of m anagem ent regarding the m ethods of m easurem ent and presentation of the 
supplem entary inform ation. How ever, we did not audit the inform ation and do not express an 
opinion on it. In addition, w e do not provide assuran ce that the Jefferson Parish Sheriff is or will 
becom e year 2000 com pliant, that the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's year 2000 rem ediation efforts 
w ill be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Jefferson Parish Sheriff does 
business are or w ill becom e year 2000 com plian t. 

Decem ber 17, 1999 
M etairie. Louisiana 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SIIERIFF'S OFFICE 
G Iff~TN A, LOUISIANA 

COM BINED BALANCE SIIEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 
June 30,1999 

ASSETS AND OTIIER DEBITS 

Ctsh and cash equivalents 
Share of po oled assets - general pool 
Share of pooled assets - bureau pool 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from olher fun6s 
Inventory 
Othe~ ~se~s 
I and, buildings, and equipment 
Amount available in debt se~ice funds 
Amo~mt Io be provided for retlremel~l 

of general long-term debt 

GOVERNM EN]AL FUND ] YPES 

GENERAL 

2,863,231 
0,046,594 
2,909,492 

20,gl5 

l OlAf, ASSE'I S AND O1 lU!R DEBITS $ 27,146.9s0~ $ 

LIABILI lIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDrFS 

Liabililies 
Accoums payable 
Accrued payroll and deductions 
Due to olher funds 
Due to olher goverl~ ents 
Due Io laxing bodies and olhers 
Deferred revenue 
Compensated absences pa yable 
Clainls and judgemems payable 
General obligation bonds payable 
Capital leases payable 

TOTAl. LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY 
AND OTHER CREDITS 

,150.930 $ 
,789,576 
,645,810 

76,850 

644947 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

2,053,517 $ 
878,280 

2,584,354 
54,537 
19.431 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

CAPI1AL 
PROJECTS 

4,632,704 

1,577.010 

1,86~.,~97 

9,431 
4,36g 

6,000,000 
5,838,841 2,840,752 

22,483,7gg 2.864,55 

232,225 

$ 9,244 

9,244 

7.768867 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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PROPRIETARY 
FUND TYPE 

INTERNAL 
SERVICE 

2,822,988 $ 
419,328 

1~86,227 
348,764 
54,090 

37,684 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

AGENCY 

ACCOUNT GROUPS 
GENERAL GENERAl, 
FIXED I~ NG-TEPJ~i 
ASSETS DEBT 

1,342,010 $ $ $ 
2,546,654 
33,723.093 

8,632 $ 

93.131 190.452 

37.427.193 

232225 

TOIALS 
MEMORA NDUM ONLY) 

JUNE 30,1999 JUNE 30,1998 

3,162,$00 

0,159,600 

805,000 
20,208 

1,227,281 $ 
1,789,576 
4,892p394 

4,092 
37,427,193 

76,850 
|0,159,600 
6,843,455 
805,000 
20,208 

155,413 
728,376 
678.737 

6,948,218 37,617,645 10,984.808 62,945,649 55 646,676 

7,823,863 

52,918,807 

7,823,863 

19,431 
649,315 
232,225 

7,768,867 
6,000~000 
8,679,893 

94,092,101 
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38.601,433 

5,692,547 

24,369 
2,610.266 
213.170 

10,194,684 
3,380,000 
14,511,771 

30.844 916 
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~ I EFFI~RSON rARISII SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, ExeEnDI~ urEs, 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TVYES 
~'OR 11 lie Y~AR END~~ J~  ~0,1~ 9 

tnte,$ov~nmemM 
Selvlce chArse* fe~ anti ~ommisslons 
Fines and forfeltur~$ 
Intet~t 
Miscellaa~ m 

EXeENDITURtS 
Cm,~,t 

Community sc~ic~ 
Public ,drly 
Employ~ programs 

Intergov~ entsl 
Debt Se~i~ 

Ptinclpal 
ImEr~st 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDI] URES 

ol IIER e INANCING SOURCES (USES 
Opc,~ling t,ansfcrs in 
Olmlx~li/,g tt ~n~f~ts DUl 

TOTAl. OTte R ,~ INANCI NO 
SOUP.C~S (USe S) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENU~*'S 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (USE~) 

FUNDBALANCE 
BEginningory~~ 

R~idUalEgUiw tr~ *fcrm 

endory~ r 

GOVERNM ENTAt, FUND "I~'p ES 

28,587.140 $ 
11.06B,444 
35,659.849 

946,1)2 
757654 

SPECIAL 
REVENU[ 

736,154 
347,969 
097,330 
I]6,441 
17,824 

DEBT 
SERVICE 

CAPITAL 
pROJEClS 

. $ 
3,000.000 

399 46"~ 

301 A LS 
M EMORANOUM ONLY 

IS,SS~,I40 
17,g04,595 
*O,O07,SlS 
1,097,3S0 
i,sou,t6l 
1,7~s,47s 

78,019,199 5r335,718 20,243 3,397,467 86.771,627 

165,34~ 
68.g37,059 

1+554,512 

3.60~ 

296,272 
4.762.440 

3,706 

70,592,661 5,062,418 

84.579 932035 

720,756 

2,143,795 

765,000 
84,093 

7,B23.284 

847,905 2,000,000 

19,055 

213.170 

(2.425,8i7) 

10,194,684 

797,145 
g~,696 

~,464.SI9 

2~445,171 

30,904,160 

754,23g 
127,006 

7:~06S~ 

2,g94,293 

28,009,967 

Fhe accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent 
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JEFFEHSON PARISII SIIERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, I.OUIS[ANA 

(OM BINED ST A] [:blENT OF ~EVENDES, EXPENDII U~ S. 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGE1 ARY BASIS} 
GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUN DS 
i-OR l liE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

Taxes 
latersovcmmentM 
Se~'ic~ ~ha+ges, fees~ d commissions 
FIIIeS and foffeilur~s 
Interest 
Miscell~ us 

GENERAL fUND 

28.587,140 $ 
L1,068,444 
35,659.849 

946,112 
757,654 

ADJUS'IM ENTS 
70 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

(37,802) $ 
115,635 
(79,0t9) 

BUDGE1ARY 
BASIS 

28,549,338 $ 
1[,184,079 
35,580,830 

946,112 
757,654 

78,019,199 ([,IS6) 78,01S,013 

165,342 
68,837,059 

~SS4.512 

32145 
I 601 

19,546 
{2161715 

2 145 
3 603 

184,888 
66,675.344 

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY}OFREVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 7,426,538 2,176,731 9,603,269 

OTIIER t INANCING SOURCES (USES) 
operating tlansfess in 
Operating U~ls fers out 

30TAL O1 IIER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTIIER 
SOURCES (USES} 

FUN[) BALANCE 
Beginning of ye~ 

84,579 
(3,379,940) 

4,131,177 

8,352,611 

2,176,731 

4,141,710) 

$ (I.964979} $ 

84,579 
(3,3?9.940} 

28,628,000 $ 
I 1,061,500 
35,400,g50 

949,500 
,693,500 

176,000 
70,224,OSO 

70,OOO 

(3,122,90S) 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLE} 

(7g,662) 
122,579 
179,980 

(3,38~) 
64,154 

tS.Sg8) 
3,548306 

3,735,359 

14,579 
(257,035) 

(3,295,361) (3,052,905) {242,456) 

6,307,908 

4,210,901 

2,815,005 

4,210,90 

20.518,809 $ 17.025.906 $ 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

3.736,154 
347,969 
1,097,330 
136.441 
17,B24 

ADJUSTM ENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY BUDGETARY 
BASIS BASIS 

192o~3o6) 
(97.799) 
17.27s) 

5,335,718 (4,761.537) 574,181 555,100 

296)72 
4,762.440 

3.7(~ 

4,368 
4,762.4401 

300640 

3,706 

362.7~  

4.000 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

{UNFAVORABLE) 

2,969 
2,024 
4,992 
(904 

62,060 

294 

TOTAL (M EM ORANDUM ONL% 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

28549338 S 
II 184079 
35,928799 
177,024 
984,754 
1,768,200 

IOC, I SC)O 
5745850 
165,000 
983,150 
t 704 950 

78,592.194 78,28g,450 

485.528 
66,675,344 

3.706 
1,554,$12 

538,900 
70,224,050 

4,000 
1,465,390 

5,062.418 (4.758.072) 304,346 366,70D 62,354 68,719,090 72.232,140 

273.300 (3.465) 269.835 188,400 

532,0~5 
1~4.579) 

720.756 

2,143.795 

50,000 
84 579 

235,256 

650,726 

50,~ 0 134,579 
464 519 

120 000 
3 i72 905 

[34,579) (3.329.940) (3.052,905) 

188,400 46,856 

650 726 

-23- 

6,543,164 

4,861,627 

3,003,405 

14,861,627 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

{UNFAVORABLE) 

78662 
22 57t~ 
82~1.19 
12 024 
1,604 
63,250 

53,172 
3.548.706 

294 
(S9.tn ] 

14 57tJ 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

G RE'I NA, LO UISIANA 

CO M BINED STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CllANG ES IN RETAINED EARNING S - PRO PRIETARY FUNDS 

FO R TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES 

Service charges 
M iscellaneous 

TOTAL REVEN UES 

EXPENSES 

Claims and judgments 
Adm inistrative expenses 
Prem iums 
M iscellaneous 

TOTAL EXPEN SES 

OPEi~ TING INCOM E (LOSS) 

NONO PERATING REVENUES 

Interest 

INCO M E BEFO RE O PERATING TRANSFERS 

O PERATING TRANSFERS IN 

NET INCO M E 

RETAINED EARNINGS 
Beginning of year 

Residual equity transfers 

End of year 

INTERNAL 
SERVICE 

JUNE 30,1999 JUNE 30, 1998 

9,333,558 
329,399 

9,662,957 

6,844,221 
224,002 

I,II9,794 
50,255 

8,238,272 

1,424,685 

706,631 

2,131,316 

2,131,316 

5,692,547 

0,710,248 
299.633 

1.009.881 

7,836,291 
193~366 

888,938 
97,527 

9.016.122 

993.759 

628.502 

2,622,26 

$ 7,823,863 $ 5,692,547 

l'he accom panying notes are an integral pall of this statem ent 
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JEFFERSON PARISIt SIIERIFF'S OFFI( E 
G RrI'NA, LOUISIANA 

COM IIINED STATEM ENT OF CASII FLOW S - VROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

CASll FLOW S FROM OPERATING 
Ac rIVITIES 

Opclating income 

Adjustments to reconcile opelating income 
(loss) to net cash provided by (used For) 
operating activities 

Add back write-offs to bad debt 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Inclease) decrease in: 
accounts receivable 
due from other funds 
other assets 

accounts payable 
due Iv other fullds 
claims payable 

Net adjustments 

INTERNAL 
SERVICE 

JUNE 30j 1999 JUNE 30,1998 

$ 1,424,685 $ 

(43.928) 
II,IS3 
(37,684) 

8,632 
92,796 

(418,470) 

993.759 

59.779 

(52919 
(3,661 
33863 

(5,000 

297.442 

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,040,184 2,323,263 

CASII FLOW S FROM NONCAP1TAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Operating tlansfers in 

NE] CASII PROVIDED BY NONCAPrFAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

CASII FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of investments 
M aturities of investments 
Interest received 

NEI CASII PROVIDED BY INVESqlNG 
AC'[ IVITIE8 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASII EQUIVALENTS 

CASII AND CASIt EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning of year 

13,209,686) 
24,083,139 

848,954 

21,572,028 
18,553,961 
590 575 

(104,229 

583 924 

NONCASII INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING 
ACI"IVITIES 

Decrease in accounts receivable due to write-off of 
bad debt 

Efl~ct Oll income for charges to bad debt expense 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of this statem ent 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

N O TES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY O F SIG NIFICANT ACCO UNTING PO LICIES 

"fhe financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office (the "Sheriff') have been prepared in can fortuity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The Sheriff's significant accounting policies are described below. 

Reporting Entity 

Under GASB's Codification of Governm ental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards Section 
2100, the financial reporting entity consists of the prim ary governm ent and its com ponent units. As the 
governing authority of the parish, the Jefferson Parish Government (tile Parish Council) is considered to be 
the prim ary governm ent for financial reporting purposes for the Parish of Jefferson. 

Com ponent units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the prim ary 
government are financially accountable. The criteria used in deternlining whether financial accountability 
exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 1) the ability 
of the primary government to impose its will on that organization, or 2) whether the potential exists for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary government. Fiscal 
depeJ~dcncy may also play a part in determ ining financial accountability. Additionally, a com poaen~ tm h 
can be an organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship w ith the prim ary 
governm ent is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statem ents to be m isleading 
or incom plete. 

For reporting purposes, the Sheriff is not considered to be a component unit of the Parish Council. Instead 
the Sheriff is considered to be a "stand-alone" special purp ose governm ent. This decision is based on the 
follow ing: 

The Sheriff enjoys a separate legal standing from the Parish Council and other governmental 
entities. The Sheriff has the ability to sue or be sued in its own name. 

The Parish Council does not appoint the Sheriff, 
Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 

The SheriW s position was created by Article V 
The Sheriff is a separately elected offi cial 

elected by the citizenry in a general, popular election 

The Parish Council does not have the ability to impose its will on the Sheriff. The Parish Council 
cannot rem ove the Sheriff from office. The Sheriff adopts its own budget separate and apart from 
tile Parish Council and other local governmental entities. The day-to-day operations of the 
Sheriff's officc are under the responsibility and control of no one other than the Sheriff. 

The Sheriff does not provide a significant financial benefit or burden to the Parish Council. W hile 
the Parish Council does provide the Sheriff with a certain amount of its office space at no cost and 
pays a certain am ount of operating expenses on behalf of the Sheriff, these transactions are not 
considered significant enough to m ake the Parish Council financially accountable for the Sheriffs 
Office. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES I'O FINANCIAl. STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

5) The Sheriff is not fiscally dependent on the Parish. The primary sources of funding for the Sheriff 
include ad valorem taxes, a one-quarter cent sales tax, and com m issions earned from collecting 
taxes, licenses and fees on behalf of other governm ental entities. The Parish Council does not 
have the authority to approve or m odify the Sheriff's budget. The Law Enforcem ent District

, of 
which the Sheriff serves as Chief Executive Offi cer, can levy taxes and issue debt without the 
approval of the Parish Council. 

Therefore, tile financial report of the Sheriff is separate and apart from the Parish Council and includes all 
of the funds and account groups, as well as component units, for which the Sheriff is financially 
accountable. As such, because the Sheriff serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the l,aw Enforcement 
District of Jefferson Parish, the operations of the District, although a separate legal entity, are, in substance 
part of the Sheriff and are included (i.e., blended) within the Sheriff's financial report. Additionally, tile 
collections and disbursem ents handled by tile Sheriff in his capacity as the Ex-Officio Tax Collector of 
Jefferson Parish are reported within the Sheriff's financial report as an Agency Fund. 

2. Description of Activities 

As tile Chief Executive Officer of the Law Enforcem ent District of the Parish, the Sheriff has the 
responsibility for enforcing state and local laws and ordinances within the territorial boundaries of the 
parish. The Sheriff provides protection to the residents of the parish through on-site patrols

, investigations, 
et cetera, and serves the residents of the Parish through the establishm ent of com m unity policing details

, 

neighborhood watch program s, anti-drug abuse and other programs. The Sheriff also adm inisters the 
parish jail and correctional facilities and exercises duties required by the parish court system, such as 
providing bailiffs, executing orders of the court, serving subpoenas, and other duties. 

The Sheriff also serves as the ex-officio tax collector of the parish. As such, the Sheriff is responsible for 
the collection and distribution ofad valorem (property) taxes, sales and use taxes, parish occupational 
licenses, state revenue sharing funds, sportsmen licenses, fines, costs and bond forfeilures im posed by the 
local district courts. 

Fund Accounting 

The Sheriff used funds and account groups to report on its financial position and th e resuhs of its 
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial managem en 
by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. 

A fund is a separate accounting entity w ith a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group, on th e 
other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for certain assets and 
liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect net expendable available 
financial resources. 

The SherifFs fund types have been classified into three categories: govern mental, proprietary and 
fiduciary. Each category , in turn, is divided into separate "'fand-types". 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
GRETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the Sheriff's general activities, including tile 

collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), and the servicing of general 
long-term debt (debt service funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the Sheriff not 
accounted for in some other fund. 

Proprietary flmds are used to account for financing of goods or services provided by one department to 
other departments of the Sheriff(internal service funds - self-insurance) on a cost-reimbursement basis 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other 
govermnents, or on behalf of other funds within the govern ment. Agency funds generally are used to 
account for assets that the governm ent holds on behalf of others as their agent, such as taxes, cash bonds 
fees. ete. 

4. Basis of Accounting 

"Ihe accounting and financial reporting treatraent applied to a fund is determ ined by its measurement lbcus 
~U. g~3ve~:o.o.~.et~.tal futld~ a~e accoutered fo~ nsio.g a eutxev.t fw.an.c[a[ resources e.~.easuren~cm f,.~cus+ W ith 
this m easurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance 

sheet. Operating statement of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 
decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

The proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of econom ic resources management focus. W ith this 
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of this fund type are included on 

the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into a retained eanfings component. 
Proprietary fund type operating statement represent increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) 
in net total assets. 

In accordance w ith GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds 
and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, it is the policy of the Sherifi's 
proprietary funds to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as all Financial Accounting 

Standards Board (FASB) statements, interpretations, accounting principles board opinions and accounting 
research bulletins of the Com m ittee on Accounting Procedure issued on or before Novem ber 30, I989, 
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental fund types and agency funds, t/ndel 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accruat (i.e, when 
they becomc both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be 
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property taxes and sale taxes are considered available if they 
are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is 
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and 
certain compensated absences which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH StlERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are state revenue sharing, intergovermnerLtal reimbursements, 
interest and grants. Ad valorcm taxes, sales taxes, fines, comm issions and costs collected and held by the 
Tax Collector Agency Fun on behalf of the Sheriffs General Fund arc also accrued. Substantially all other 
revenues are recorded when received. 

-fhe accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the proprietary fired type. Under this method, revenues arc 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. 

The Sheriff may also report deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when 
a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable and available" criteria for recognition in the current 
period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the government before it has a legal 
claim to them , as when grant m onies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures. In 
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are m et, or when the governm ent has a legal 
claim to the resources, the liability of deferred revenue is removed from the com bined balance sheet and 
revenue is recognized. 

5. Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control device during the year for the General 

and Special Revenue Funds (except for the grant funds). Budgets are legally adopted for the funds fllrough 
a resolution authorized by the Sheriff. Budgetary data for the Grant Special Revenue Funds and thc 
Capital Project Funds arc not presented since the funds are budgeted over the life of the respective g~ant ol 
project and not on an annual basis. Formal budgetary accounting is not employed for the I)cbt Service 
Fund because effective control is alternatively achieved through the indenture provisions ofthc ccrlificalcs 

Expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. M anagement of the Sheriff may 

make line-item adjustments within a fund without the Sheriff's approval as lmrg as the total revenues and 
expenditures do not change. Appropriations which are not expended nor encumbered lapse at year end. 

Budgets are adopted for the General and Special Revenue Funds on a basis consistent with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that (1) expenditures represented by unpaid invoices 
received after the year-end budgetary cut-off and which had not been encum bered are recognized when 

paid, (2) encumbrances are recorded as expenditures, (3) amounts paid under capital leases are budgeted as 
rent expense rather than debt service, and (4) sales taxes and the related commissions are recorded when 
received. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISI! SItERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

6. Encumbrances 

Encumbrances represent com m itm ents related to unperform ed contracts for goods or services. 
Encum brance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other com m itm ents for the 
expenditures of m onies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
em ployed as an extension of form al budgetary integration in the General and Special Revenue Funds. 
Encum brances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balance because they do not 
constitute expenditures nor liabilities. 

7. Cash and Investm ents 

Cash and cash equivalents shown on the face of the Com bined Balance Sheet include amounts in dem and 
deposits and petty cash. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Proprietary Funds consider a 
highly liquid investm ents with a m aturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

In accordance with GASB Statem ent No. 31, investments are generally stated at fair value. M oney market 
investm ents that have a remaining m aturity at time of purchase of one year or less are not stated at fair 
value but are stated at cost or am ortized cost. M oney market investments include short-term , highly liquid 
debt instrum ents such as com m ercial paper and U. S. Treasury and agency obligations. 

Louisiana Revised Statutes (LSA-RS 33:2955) authorize the Sheriff to invest in (I) direct obligations of the 
United States Treasury , the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the federal governm ent, 

(2) bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or 
U.S. government instrumentalities, (3) direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry 
only securities, (4) time certificates of deposits of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiaua an 
national banks having their principal offices in the state of Louisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings 

and loan associations, (5) in mutual or trust fund institutions, which are registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Comm ission under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940, and which have 
underlying investm ents consisting solely of and lim ited to securities of the U.S. government or its ageucies, 
or (6) guaranteed investment contracts issued by a bank, financial institution, insurance company, or other 
entity having one of the two highest short-term rating categories of either Standard & Poor's Corporation 
or M oody's Investors Service, provided that no such investment m ay be m ade except in connection with a 
financing program approved by the State Bond Com m ission. 

8. Pooled Assets 

The Sheriff follows the practice of pooling its cash and investments in order to m axim ize earu ings 
potential. All funds participate in the pool except for the Tax Collector Agency Fund and the Sheriff's 
Account Agency Fund. Total cash, investments, and accru ed interest on investments of the Pool are 
reported in all funds as "Share of Pooled Assets - General Pool." Funds with negative share report the 
advance as an interfund payable and the General Fund, which has been determ ined to be the receivable 
fund by m anagem ent, reports an off-setting interfund receivable. Interest earn ed on pooled cash and 
investments is allocated each month to each individual fund based on the average balance of its share of 
pooled assets. 
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JEFFER SO N PA RISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO U ISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The Sheriff also follows the practice of pooling the cash and investm ents of all funds controlled by the 
Bureau of Revenue and Taxation Departm ent. Total cash and investm ents of the pool are reported in tile 
various funds as "Share of Pooled Assets - Bureau Pool". Funds with a negative share in this pool report 
the advance as an interfund payable and the Property Tax Fund, which has been determ ined to be the 
receivable fund by m anagement, reports an off-setting interfund receivable. Accum ulated interest and 
fiscal charges which have not yet been allocated to the various funds are netted against the pool's cash and 
investment to arrive at "net pooled assets". 

Short-term lnterfund Receivables/Payables 

During the course of operations, num erous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided 
or services rendered. These receivable and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to 
other funds" on the balance sheet. Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as "interfund 
receivables/payables". 

0. Advances to Other Funds 

N oncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally 
by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available 
financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation. 

Inventories 

The cost of material and supplies acquired by governmental funds (ekcept for the Commissary Sales 
Special Revenue Fund) are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. The inventory of such 
materials and supplies at June 30, 1999 would not be material to the financial statem ents. 

The inventory of the Com m issary Sales Special Revenue Fund consists of consum able food products and 
other items purchased for resale to inm ates of the correctional center. Inventories are valued at cost using a 
moving average pricing m ethod and recorded as an expenditure when consumed. 

2. Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them . Instead, capital acquisition 
and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and the related assets are reported in 
the general fixed asset account group. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost, where historical 
records are available, and at estim ated historical costs where no historical records exist. Donated fixed 
assets are valued at their estim ated fair m arket value on the date received. 

3"he costs of norm al maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
asset lives are not capitalized. 

Assets in the general fixed asset account group are not depreciated 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE A - SUM M ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. Com pensated A bsences 

Vested or accum ulated vacation, sick leave and related costs that are expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources are to be reported as an expenditure and a liability of the 
governm ental fund that will pay it. Am ounts of vested or accumulated vacation, sick leave and related 
costs that are not expected to be liquidated w ith expendable available financial resources are to be reported 
in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditure is reported for these am ounts. In addition, 
GASB Statement N o. 16 requires the accrual of salary-related costs that will ultimately be paid by the 
Sheriff at the tim e vested compensated absences are liquidated. This amount is included in the 
com pensated absences liability recorded in the general long-term debt account group. 

4. Long-term  Obligations 

For long-term  obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial 
resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations 
is reported in the general long-term debt account group. 

Fund Equity 

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for 
a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for filture use of financial 
resources. 

6. ]nterfund Transactions 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenue or expenditures. Transaction that constitute 
reimbursem ents to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that are properly applicable to another 
fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reim bursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund 
that is reimburses. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external tran sactions and reimbursements, 
are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual 
equity transfers. A ll other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 

7. Total Colum ns on Combined Statem ents 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned "memorandum only" to indicate 
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these colum ns do not present financial 
positions, results of operations or changes in cash flows in conform ity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Neither are such data comparable to a consolidation, lnterfund elim inations have not been 
made ill the aggregation of this data. 

Com parative Data 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected sections of the accom panying 
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the Sheriff's financial position 
and operations. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE B - STEW ARDSH IP, CO M PLIANCE AND ACCO UNTABILITY 

BUDGET 

In accordance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (LSA-RS 39:1301), the procedures used by the 
Sheriff in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements include public notices of the proposed 
budget, public inspections, and public hearings. The budget is then legally adopted by the Sheriff through a fonnal 
im plem entation letter. All am endm ents to the budget m ust also be approved by the Sheriff. Budgeted am ounts 
included in the accom panying statements are as originally adopted or as finally am ended by the Sheriff as of June 
25. 1999. 

The accom panying Com bined Statement of Revenues, Expemlitures and Changes in Fund Balances - Actual and 
Budget (Budgetary Basis) - General and Special Revenue Fund Types present comparison of the legally adopted 
budget, with actual data on the budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing 
data on a budgetary basis differs from those used to present financial statem ents in conform ity with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a reconciliation of the resulting basis, timing, and entity differences in 
excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses for the year ended June 30, 
1999, is presented below . 

Special Revenue 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (budgetary basis) $ 6,307,908 $ 235.256 

ADJUSTM ENTS 

To adjust for accrual of sales taxes 

"1o adjust expenditures for unpaid invoices 

To adjust expenditures for payroll accrua 

To adjust for encumbrances 

I'o record excess of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other 
uses for non-budgeted funds 

I/xcess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses (GAAP) basis 

34- 

6.82 

(71,658) 

(1,925,092) 

0 

4.368 

481.132 

7 720.7 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NO TE C - DEPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the Sheriff's deposits was $59,893,644 and the bank balance was 
$63,456,151. The bank balance is categorized as follows: 

Category Bank Balance 

Amount insured by FDIC, or collateralized with securities held by the Sheriffs agent 
in the sheriff's name $ 63.456.15 

Amount collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 
departm ent or agent in the Sheriffls name 

Uncollateralized (includes balance that is collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution but not in the Sheriffs name). 

Total bank balance 

0 

$ 63T4561151 

The Sheriff's investm ents at year end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Sheriff at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are 
held by the Sheriff or its agent in the Sheriffs nam e. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments 
for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust departm ent or agent in the Sheriff's nam e. Category 3 
includes unin sured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust 
departm ent or agent but no in the Sheriffs name. 

Category 

Louisiana Asset 
M anagement Pool 

Total Investments 

5,526,468 15.526.468 

During the year, the Sheriff invested in U.S. Instrumentalities (discount notes) on a regular basis, however, at year 
end, because of declining interest rates, the Sberiff rolled its investments into the Louisiana Asset M anagement 
Pool. 

The Sheriff has investments in shares of the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a state sponsored externa 
investment pool. Because these investments are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry 
form , they are not categorized. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE D - PO O LED ASSETS 

A reconciliation of pooled assets held in the General Pool at June 30, 1999 is presented below 

Pooled Assets 
Gcncral 
Pool 

Cash 

Investments 

Accrued interest receivable 

Less: unallocated interest and fiscal charges 

Less: accounts payable 

Net Pooled Assets 

8,480,144 

0 

0 

0 

(3,178) 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 

Capital Project Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

Agency Funds 

Total Equity in Pool 

0 

878,280 

4,632,704 

419,328 

2,546,654 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE D - POOLED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

A reconciliation of pooled assets held in the Bureau Pool at June 30, 1999 is presented below: 

Pooled Assets 
Bureau 
Pool 

Accrued interest receivable 

Add: unallocated interest and fiscal charges 

N et Pooled Assets 

0 

0 

67.165 

Equity in Pool 

Tax Collector Agency Fund 

M iscellaneous Fee 

Criminal (;ash Bonds 

24'~ Judicial Court Fees 

Fines 

Hunting and Fishing 

Property Tax 

Sales Tax 

Total Equity in Pool 

-37 

43,233 

798.930 

741,211 

922,578 

253,567 

3,741,125 

27,222,449 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE E - REC EIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 1999 consist of the following 

General 
Special 
Revenue 

Capital 
Projects 

Internal 
Service Total 

Receivables: 

Ad valorem taxes 

Sales taxes 

Intergovem mental 

Service charges, fees and 
comm issions 

Accounts and other 

less: allowance for uncoilectibles 

Net receivables 

55,129 $ 

2,785,561 

1,640,235 

6,649 

0 

0 $ 

0 

55,129 

2,785,561 

4,224,102 

5,335,136 

6.649 

348 764 

223.884 487 0 0 224 37 

The Sheriff considers all receivables to be collectible, therefore, no allowance has been es~blished for doubtfu 
accounts. 

NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS 

The follow ing is a summ ary of changes in the general fixed asset account group during the fiscal year 

Balance at 
Asset Category Beginning of Year Additions Deletions 

Balance at 
End of Year 

aud 

[iquipnlent 

Vehicles 

Construction in Progress 

Total 

3,154,008 

1,959,511 

9,371,085 

3,981,507 

0 $ 

105,811 

3,319,040 

0 $ 

0 

(235,426) 

,868,070) 

L35 322 

3.259,8L9 

5.043 125 

8,687,402 (278,830) 12,390,079 

-38 



JEFFERSO N PAR ISII SItER IFF'S O FFIC E 
G RETNA, LO UISIA NA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE F - FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Jhe Construction in Progress of $12,390,079 relates to the acquisition/construction of the 800 M ;IZ radio system 
Outstanding commitments related to the construction of this project total $1,197,635 at June 30, 1999. 

NOTE G - O PERATING AG REEM ENTS 

The Sheriff renewed its site m anagement agreement with Xerox Corporation on Anguat 21, 1997. Xerox 
Corporation is to provide various management and maintenance services to tile copiers on the prem ises for a base 

monthly charge of$11,422 (adjusted each year for inflation). The term of the agreement is 36 months. Payments 
made under this agreem ent totaled $136,973 for tile fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. qhe agreement expires Augus 

2 I. 2000. 

The Sheriff entered into a noncancellable lease agreement for office space in a local mall for one of the districts 
The lease began October 1, 1990 and has a term of 120 months. The lease payments are currently $8,441 per month 

(as adjusted for inflation). The agreement also provides for the mall to reimburse the Sheriff for security details at 
the mail in an amount equal to the m onthly rental fee. Payments m ade and security fees received under this lease 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 were $100,928. Future paym ents and receipts for this lease are as follows: 

Am ount 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 

2000 

2001 

Total 

01,292 

25,324 

26.616 

The Sheriff has entered into a variety of other operating leases for vehicles and equipment. Payments made under 
these leases totaled $320,041 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. The combined minimum payments dt*e under 
these agreements are as follows: 

Am ount 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 

2000 

2001 

2002 

Total 

137,795 

45,400 

2,358 

85,553 



JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G R ETNA , LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE G - OPERATING AGREEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 

Tile Sheriff has a month-to-month agreement with the Jefferson Parish Clerk of Court to access its "'CDM IS'" s>stem 
at a cost of $1,050 per m onth. During tile current fiscal year, the Sheriff paid gl2,600 under this agreentent. 

The Sheriff also has a m onth-to-month agreement with tbe Louisiana Department of Public Safety to access its 
network system at a cost of $1,737 per month. During the current fiscal year, the Sberiff paid $18,978 under this 

In connection w ith the new 800 M Hz radio system , the Sheriff is leasing some rooftop and antennae space in 
various parts of the Parish. M onthly payments total $1,719 on the various leases. Total expenditures during tile 
current fiscal year totaled 834,222. 

NOTE H - LONG-TERM  DEBT 

General Obligation Bonds 

The Sheriff issued $5,005,000 in Refunding Certificates of Indebtedness in December 1992 to provide 
funds for the refunding of the outstanding 1990 Law Enforcement District Certificates of indebtedness. 
These certificates re secured by, and are payable solely from,pledge of the excess annual revenues of the 
Law Enforcem ent District of Jefferson Parish, above statutory, necessary and usual charges in each of the 
fiscal years through June 30, 2000. At June 30, 1999, $232,225 was available in the Debt Service Fund to 
service the debt. 

Certificates outstanding at June 30, 1999 are as follows 

Description Amount Issued Amount Outstanding 

Law Enforcemen! District 
Refunding Certificates of 
Indebtedness - Series 1992 5.20% to 5.35% 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity, including interest of $43,067, are as follows 

Amount 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 

2000 

2001 

Total 

848.067 

$ 848.067 

There are a number of lim itations and restrictions contained in the bond indenture which the Sheriff is in 
compliance w ith as of June 30, 1999. 



,
IEI;FERSO N PA RIStl StlER IFI;'S O FFIC I" 

G RETNA, LO UISIA NA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAl, STATEM ENI"S (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Com pensated Absences 

Em ployees accrue vacation leave at the rate of t2 to 19.2 days per year, according to years of service x~ith 
the Sheriff's Office. A maximum of 90 days of vacation leave can be carried forward for those ranked at 
or above captain and 45 days for all others. Upon termination or retirement, employees can receive 
payment for unused accum ulated vacation leave. Sick leave is accrued at the rate of 24 days per year for 
all em ployees. Upon term ination or retirement, em ployees can receive payment for unused accum ulated 
sick leave at varying rates, depending upon the amount of sick leave accumulated. The related costs 
associated with the future payment of compensated absences are com puted at the rate of 12% . The 

accum ulated liability as of June 30, 1999 is as follows: 

Annual and sick leave 

Related costs 

Total 

Capital Leases 

$ 8,911,930 

1.247.670 

The Sheriff has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of offi ce equipment. 
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (titles transfer at the end of the 
lease) and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of 
the date & their inception. 

The following is an analysis of equipment leased under capital leases as of June 30. 1999 

General Fixed Assets 

The following is a schedule of the future m inim um lease payments under this capital lease, and the present 
value of the net future m inim um lease paym ents at June 30, 1999. 

General Long-Term 
Debt 

Fiscal Year Endint~ June 30 

Less: amounts representing hlleres 

20.853 

20,853 

(645l 



JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
,Ju~e 30, 1999 

NOTE II - LO NG-TERM DEBT (CO NTINUED) 

d. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summ ary of the changes in general long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 

30. 1999: 

Type of Deb 
Balance, July 

1998 
Additions 
(Deletions) 

Balance. June 30 
1999 

General Obligation Bonds 

Compensated Absences 

Capital Leases 

"locals 

1,570,000 $ (765,000) $ 

9,100,529 1,059,07 

52,353 

805.000 

0,159,600 

20,208 

$ 10,722.882 $ 261.926 $ I0,984,808 

NOTE I - TAXES PAID UNDER PROTEST 

The unsettled balance due to taxing bodies and others at June 30. 1999 include $1,878,795 paid under protest, For 
June 30, 1999. this amount represents protested sales taxes of $253,257 and protested ad valorem taxes of 
$1,625.538. If these taxes are refunded to the taxpayer, Louisiana Revised Statutes (LSA-RS 47.2110) require the 
Tax Collector to pay interest at 2 percent per annum on the amounts held. These funds are held in the Tax Collector 

Agency Fund pending resolution of the protest. 

NOTE d - RESERVATIO NS AND DESIGNATIONS O F FUND BALANCES/R ETAINED EARNINGS 

Retained Earnings - Reserved for Self-lnsurance 
As discussed in Note N , the Sheriff is primarily self-insured for losses related to health, automotive and 
professional liability claim s. This reserve reflects the balances in the self-insurance funds available to fund 

current and future claim s. 

Fund Balance - Reserve for Invento 
This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, inventory, to reflect that the asset does no 
constitute an available, expendable resource of the fund. 

3. Fund Balance - Reserved for Encum brances 
This reserve represents commitments outstanding at June 30, 1999 for the expenditure of funds obligated 
by open purchase orders and unperfornted contracts. 

4. Fund Balance - Reserved for Debt Service 
This reserve represents monies set aside to fnnd future debt service paym ents 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE J - RESERVATIO NS AND DESIG NATIO NS O F FUND BALANC ES/RETAINED EARNINGS 

(CONTINUED) 

Fund Balance - Reserved for Construction 
This reserve represents monies set aside from the 1/4 cent sales tax for construction of an 800 M HZ radio 
system , the planned purchase of a new W estbank Adm inistration Building, and the purchase/construction 
of a new firing range. 

6. Fund Balance - Designated 

$6,000,000 and $3,350,000 of the General Fund's fund balance have been designated for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively, to reflect management's plans for financing future projects as 
follows: 

Designated for 800 M HZ Radio System Construction - Part of the 1994 1/4 cent sales tax proposal was to 
upgrade the Sheriff's com munication system by constructing an 800 M HZ radio system . Prelim inary 
estimates place the cost of the system at between $11 and $14 million. The Sheriff has set up a Capital 
Project Fund to account for the construction of the system. $3 million has been designated in the General 
Fund. 

Designated for M atching of Federal Grants - the Sheriff's Offi ce was awarded a COPS Universal tliriog 
grant from tile D.S. Department of Justice for $3.1 million to provide funds to hire 48 additional deputies 
The grant calls for a 75/25 split, thus, the Sheriff will have to provide $1.1 m illion as a local match. A 
$350,000 designation represented the Sheriff's share of the cost should the deputies be hired. Because of 
budgetary lim itations, the Sheriff was unable to utilize this grant, thus, the designation is relieved as of 
June 30. 1999. 

- A designation of $1,000,000 has been set up for the estimated costs 
of constru cting and/or repairing certain Sheriff's Offi ce buildings 

Designated for Contingencies - A designation of $2,000,000 has been set up for contingencies that may 
affect the Sheriff's General Fund. This includes the possibility of a state m andated increase in the pension 
contribution as well as other salary  related costs. 

Designated for Subsequent Years' Expenditures - A designation is typically set up in the General Fund to 
rcflect the am ount of current available fund balance budgeted in the subsequent year as a funding source 
Since neither the 98/99 nor the 99/00 budget reflect an estimated deficit, no designation is shown for eitller 
fiscal year. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH SIiERIFF'S OFFICE 
G RETNA , LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NO TE K - ]'AXES AND COM M ISSIONS 

Sales Tax 

The total sales tax levied and collected in Jefferson Parish during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was 8 
3/4 percent. Of this 8 3/4 percent, 4 percent is levied by the State, I ~ percent is levied by the Jefferson 
Parish Public School System (a separate entity), 3 percent is levied by the Parish of Jefferson (a sepalate 
entity), and 1/4 percent is levied by the Sheriff. Of the 3 percent levied by the Parish, 1/8 of one percent is 
dedicated to the Sheriff to finance the operations of the Law Enforcement District. In January 1998, based 
on a parish-wide election, the expiration date of the 1/8 cent tax was extended from 2006 to 2022. Thus, 
the Sheriff will receive a total of 3/8 of one cent for some time to com e. 

Comm issions 

As Ex-O fficio Tax Collector of the Parish of Jefferson, the Sheriff is responsible for the collection and 
distribution ofad valorem taxes, sales and use taxes, parish occupational licenses, state revenue sharing 
funds, sportsm en licenses, fines, costs, and forfeitures im posed by the district courts. On all collections 

(other than ad valorem taxes), the Sheriff charges a commission ranging from 9 ~ to 15 percent of the 
amount collected. 

Ad Valorem Tax 

In lieu of a com m ission on ad valorem taxes collected by tile Sheriff as Ex-Officio Tax Collector, tile 
Sheriff levies an ad valorem tax on real property w ithin the Parish The levy is generally m ade as of 
Novem ber 15 of each year. The tax is then due, and becomes an enforceable lien on the property, on the 
first day of the m onth following the filing of the tax roll by the Parish Assessor w ith the Louisiana Fax 

Commission (usually December 1). The tax is delinquent 30 days after its due date. 

Ad valorem taxes are levied based on property values deternrined by the Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office 
(a separate entity). All land and residential improvements are assessed at 10 percent of its fair market 
value, and other properly at 15 percent of its fair m arket value. A homestead exem ption is in effect which 
essentially makes the first $7,500 of assessed value exempt from taxes. 

The number of m ills levied on the 1998 and 1997 tax rolls was 8.28. This is the maxim um amount allowed 
under prevailing statutes. 
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JEFFER SO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G R ETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NO TE L - STATE REVENUE SH ARING 

State revenue sharing funds provided by Article 7, ~ 26 of the State Constitution totaling $9,304,019 were received 
during the year and distributed by the Tax Collector Agency Fund as follows: 

Am ount 

State: 

Treasurer (East Jefferson Levee District) 

Jefferson Parish: 

Ambulance District No 

Coroner 

Council 

Public School System 

Sheriff 

W ater District No. 1 

Other: 

W est Jefferson Levee District 

Various State Pension Plans 

430,28 

5,974 

106,148 

4,136,039 

1,878,423 

1,264,573 

634,098 

578,595 

269.888 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH SItER IFF'S O FFICE 

G RETNA , LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NO TE M  - INTERFUND TRA NSACTIO NS 

RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES 

Individual balance due from/to other funds at June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

Fund k~ i~able 
lateO'uad 
Payable 

Oene[al Fund 

Sp~i~l Rcvcno~ Funds 

Mulu-Jur~sdic~ional Tisk For~ 

local I a~ E~fo,~ m~.t 8book Gra.t 

Coin missety s.les 

Junior Deputy 

S~.te Ass~ Forrehofe 

Rccr~afion ~d Relier 

A~eocy Funds 

Sheriff s Ac~oun~ 

I~m.,e DcposiL~ 

Piope~y and Evldenc~ 

Na,~ ti~ Sei~ re 

Juveni$~ Pl~ sln8 and Lock-up Centcl 

Coo~r~ m Co.s~ ctlon 

-46 

73696 

21416 

2 4(}2)2S 

10~7~0 

59,gl4 

0 

0 

0 



JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERI FF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE M - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Amounts due to the General Fund from the various Agency Funds are included in accounts receivable of the 
General Fund and in amounts due to taxing bodies and others in the Agency Funds. The amounts include sales 
taxes receivable, ad valorem taxes receivable, fines, eon'~rnissions, interest, etc. 

O PERATING TRANSFERS 

A summary of operating transfers by fund type for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 is as follows 

Fund Type Transfers TO or From 
Operating 
l"r~ sfers In 

Opera6ng 
Transfer Out 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 

Commissary Sales 

Junior Depuly 

Mu)0-Jurisdictional Task Force 

Federal Grants Fund 

[~ca[ L*w Enforcement Block Grant 

Commissary Sales 

Jtmior Deputy 

M ulti-Jurisdictional Task Force 

Federal Gri ts Fund 

Local Law Enforcement Block Gr anl 

I.ED 1992 Series Sinking Fund 

W estbank Adminislration Building Capital 
Project 

F0ing Range Capita[ Pro Joel 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Debl Service Funds 

kF.D 1992 Series Sinking Fund Ge neral Fund 

Capital Projecl Funds 

Westbank Adm0dstra0on BuilddLg 
Capital Piojcct General Fund 

firing Range Capital Projecl Genelal Fund 

Totat 

-47- 

84,579 $ 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

50,00o 

29,033 

441,252 

11,750 

847,90S 

500.000 

500 000 

84,579 3.379 910 

0 

50.000 

29,033 

441,252 

11.750 

84,579 

0 

0 

0 

O 

84,579 

847.905 



JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G R ETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NO TE N - RISK M ANAG EM ENT 

Auto Loss and General Liability 

The Sheriff is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; 

errors and omissions; injuries to employees and to the public; and natural disasters. To protect against 
these risks, the Sheriff participates in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk Management Program (a public entity 
risk pool). Under this program, general/professional liability claims are covered by insurance at the rate of 
$100,000 per claim, with an aggregate stop-loss of $500,000 for each loss year. The aggregate stop-loss 
coverage was only $300,000 for 96/97 and prior years. Excess liability coverage is in effect for losses 
reported up until August 31, 1990. No excess coverage is available for losses reported after that date, thus, 
once the aggregate is m et, the Sheriff is com pletely self-insured on general/professional liability cases. 

For the majority of auto loss claim s, it is the policy of the Sheriff not to purchase commercial or other 
insurance for the risks of loss to which it is exposed. Thus, the Sheriff is 100 percent self-insured. The 
costs of servicing the auto loss claim s and making claim paym ents are accounted for in the Auto Loss and 
General Liability Internal Service Fund. The General Fund provides an "operating subsidy" to the fund to 
finan ce the claim s expense. This subsidy is treated as a "quasi-externaV transaction and, accordingly, is 
shown as an expenditure of the General Fund and a revenue of the internal service fund. The amount of 
tile subsidy is calculated w ith consideration given to recent trends in actual claim s experience of the Sheriff 
and, beginning in 1996, a provision for catastrophic losses. 

At June 30, 1999, the Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund had retained earnings of 

$2,352,658 after accruing an estimated $4,630,783 in claims and judgments payable. This amount includes 
a liability for claim s incurred but not reported of $1,215,495. These liabilities are based on the 
requirem ents of GASB Codification Section C50 - Claims and Judgments, which requires that a liability 
for claims be recorded if inform ation prior to the issuan ce of the financial statements indicate that it is 
probable and the am ount of the loss can be reasonably estim ated. 

Loss developm ent factors are used by m anagem ent to estim ate the ultimate liabilities, however, because 
actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and 
damage awards, the process used in com puting clairns liability does not necessarily result in exact amounts 
Claim s liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the 
frequency of claim s and other econom ic and social factors. 

Claims against the Sheriff totaled approximately $1,443,103 during the 98/99 fiscal year. Of the current 
and prior year claim s, the Sheriff estim ates it has $4,630,783 left to pay. Changes in the balances of claim s 

and judgments payable during the past three fiscal years is as follows: 

Claims Payable at 
Beginning of Year 

Culxent Year Claims and 
Changes in Estimales Claim Payments 

Clailns Payable at 
End of Year 

996-97 

997-98 

998-99 

4,548,360 $ 

5361,685 

5,891,858 

-48- 

4,412,604 $ 

2,727,628 

I,d43,103 

2,597A55 

2.704.17s 

5,761,695 

5,891,858 

4,630,7g3 



JEFFERSO N PAR ISIt SItER1FF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAl, STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE N - RISK M ANAGEM ENT (CONTINUED) 

At June 30, 1999, the Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund has cash, investments and 
pooled cash of $6,950,394 designated for payment of these claims. See Note C for additional infol'mation 
on tim Sheriff's deposits and investm ents. 

Group Health and Life Insurance 

The Sheriff provides health, accident, and life insurance to its employees. Under this program, which is 
adm inistered by a service agent, tile Sheriff is self-insured for its claims reported during the year up to tile 
"stop-loss" amount of $100,000 per person. Contributions into the fund are made by the participating 
em ployees and are m atched by the Sheriff based on tile employee's classification. These interfund 
"prem iums" are treated as "quasi-externar' transactions and are shown on the finallcial stalenlcnts as an 
expenditure to tile General Fund and a revenue to tile Internal Service Fund. Excess [iabilily for claims 
over the stop-loss arnonnt up to 5;1,000,000 is provided for throagh a commercial insurance earlier. During 
98/99, no claims exceeded the $100,000 stop-loss am ount. No claims exceeded the excess liability 
COvErage of $1,000,000 for each of the past three years. At June 30, 1999, a liability of $2,212,672 has 
been accrued, which represents the amount of claim s reported to the service agent but not yet paid and the 
amount of clainas incurred but not reported. The fund has assets of $7,563,046 at June 30, 1999 available 
to pay these claims. 

Changes in the balances of claims and judgments payable during the past three fiscal years is as follows 

Clahns Payable al 
Beginning of Year 

Current Year Claims and 
Changes in Es0mates Claim Paymenls 

CLaims Payable at 
Ind of Year 

996-97 

997-98 

998-99 

NOTE O - PENSIO N PLAN 

Plan Description and Provisions 

,098,914 $ 

199 798 4.845.558 

The Sheriff contributes to the Sheriff's Pension & Relief Fund (the "System"), a cost-sharing muhiple- 
employer defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). The System is a state-wide public 
retirement system for the benefit of sheriffs and their staffs, which is adm inistered and controlled by a 
separate board of trustees. The System was established and provide for within LSA-RS 11:2171 of the 
Louisiana Revised Statutes. 

Contributions of participating sheriffs, together w ith shared and local and state revenues, are pooled within 
the System to fund accrued benefits. Both em ployer and employee contribution rates are approved by the 
Louisiana Legislature. The System provides retirem ent and disability benefits, annual cost of living 

adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA , LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE O - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

"l't~e System issues a publicly available financial repor ~a ~cludes financial sta e ~cnts and required 
supplementary information for the System . That report m ay be obtained by writing to Sherifl's Pension & 
Relief Fund, PO Box 3163, Monroe, LA 7121-3163 or by calling (318)362-3188. 

Funding Policy 

In addition to ad valorem and insurance premium taxes that are remitted to the System (which constitute 
the major funding of the System), plan members are required by state statute to contribute 8.7 percent of 
the gross salary and the Sheriff is required to contribute at an actuarially determ ine rate. During 98-99, the 
employer's rate was 5 percent of covered payroll. Of the employee's 8.7 percent, the Sheriff contributes 7 
percent. The contributions for the year ended June 30, 1999 were as follows: 

Covered 
Payroll 

Percent of 
Covered Payto 

mploycr 889,544 $ 37,759.390 

7 01)%  

500%  

The Sheriff's contributions for the previous three fiscal years were $4,472,081 (12%), $4,540,559 03%) 
and $4,071,655 (13%), which equaled the required contributions for each year. 

NOTE P - POST-EM PLO YM ENT BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note O
, the Sheriff provides optional post-em ploym ent health-care 

and/or life insurance benefits to all em ployees who retire from the Sheriff's Office under the same restrictions as iu 
the above note and to em ployees eligible for "COBRA " coverage. As of June 30, 1999, there were 155 retired 
employees participating in the post-employm ent health-care and life plan

. 

The benefits for the covered employees are provide through a self-insurance program (see Note N) whose monthly 
premiums are paid jointly by the employee/retiree and the Sheriff. The cost of providing these benefits for the 
retirees is not separable from the cost of providing benefits for active em ployees and cannot be reasouabJy 

estimated. The expenditures are recorded on a pay-as-you-go ("cash") basis 

NOTE Q - DEFERRED COM PENSATION 

The Sheriff nffers his employees a deferred compensation plan (the "plan") created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 
salary until future years. "lhe deferred com pensation is not available to employees until term ination

, retirement, 
death, or an unforeseeable emergency. 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH SH ERIFF'S O FFIC E 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE Q - DEFERRED COM PENSATION (CONTINUED) 

In 1996, the U.S. Congress passed the Sm all Business Job Protection Act of 1996, which requires that employer 
govern m ents place all am ounts deferred under IRC Section 457 into a trust for the exclusive benefit of participants 
and their beneficiar ies. This change was allowed as early as January 1, 1997, but m ust be done by January I, 1999 

In prior years, these assets were solely the property of the Sheriff and subject to claims of the Sheriff s general 
creditors, and were reported in the Sheriff's financial statements. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the 
Sheriff am ended its plan to com ply w ith the requirements of the Act. Thus, the Sheriff no longer has owoership of 
the plan assets and they are no longer reported in the Sheriff's financial statem ents. Investments are m anaged by the 

Plan's trustee (PEBSCO). The choice of the investment option(s) are made by the Plan participants. 

NO TE R - CO M M ITM ENTS AND CONTING ENCIES 

Litigation 

The Sheriff is named as a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from claims related to 
automobile accidents, negligence, and discrimination. As discussed in Note N, the Sheriff is primarily self- 
insured w ith respect to claim s of these types. The Sheriff's insurance departm ent and its attorneys have 
reviewed these claim s and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the 
Sheriff and to arrive at an estim ate, if possible, of the am ount or range of potential loss to the Sheriff. 

As a result of such review, loss contingencies, which could be reasonably estim ated, have been categorized 
as "probable", "reasonably possible", and "remote", as defined in Governm ental Accounting Standards 
Board Codification Section C50 - Claim s and Judgments. Loss contingencies am ounting to $4,630,783 
categorized as "probable" have been accrued ill the Auto Loss and General Liability Internal Service Fund 

(see Note N). 

2. Federal Assistance 

The Sheriff participates in certain federal financial assistance program s. The program s have been audited 
in accordance w ith the Single Audit Act of 1996 and OM B Circular A-133. Audits of prior years have not 
resulted in any disallowance of costs; however, the gran tor agency m ay provide for further exam inations. 
Based on past experience, the Sheriff believes that further exam inations would not result in any material 
disallowed costs. 

ntergovernm ental Agreem ent - Dedication of Video Poker Proceeds 

Effective January 1, 1997, the Sheriff agreed to rem it his share of the state video poker com m issions to the 

Parish of Jefferson to help fund the construction of a new jaih Commissions on the amount of money 
gam bled in the Parish are rem itted by the various vendors to the State. Each m onth, the State rem its an 
am ount based on legislatively approved form ulas to the Sheriff and other agencies in th e Parish. The tern1 
of the original agreem ent was for 36 m onths. For the year ended June 30, 1999 the term was extended 
another six months. For the year ended June 30, 1999, the Sheriff received and rem itted $1,544,925. II is 
projected that another $1,500,000 will be remitted to the Parish over the remaining 12 months of the 
agreem ent. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ER IFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (CONTINUED) 
June 30, 1999 

NOTE S - EXPENDITURES O F THE SH ERIFF'S O FFICE PAID BY TH E PARISH CO UNCIL 

The Jefferson Parish Council (a separate entity) provides the Sheriff with a certain amount of office space at no cost 
In addition, the Parish is required by State statutes to pay a certain am ount of the Sheriff's operating expenses. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the Parish paid $286,855 of operating expenditures on behalf of the 
Sheriff. 

These expenditures are not recorded on the books of the Sheriff. The following is a breakdown of the expenditures 
paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999: 

Type of Expenditu re Am ount 

Utilities and telephone 

Offi ce supplies and equipment renta 

nsurance pl enlmm s 

238,263 

13,680 

34.912 

$ 286~855 
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SU PPLEM EN TA R Y IN FO RM ATIO N 

REQUIRED BY THE 
G O V ERN M ENTA L A C C O U N TIN G  STAN DA RD S BO A R D 

(UNAUDITED) 

The following pages contain supplementary information as required by Technical Bulletin 98-I, issued by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in October 1998. The provisions of the GASB 
technical bulletin, effective for financial statem ents dated after October 31, 1998, require disclosures in the 
notes to the financial statements about the governmental entity's readiness in addressing Year 2000 issues 
for its com puter system s and other electronic equipm ent. In M arch 1999, GASB issued Technical Bulletin 
99-1, which allowed the disclosure of Year 2000 issues as required supplem entary inform ation. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY INFORM ATION 
As of June 30, 1999, and for the Period 

July 1, 1998 to June 30, 1999 

(UNAUDITED) 

Y EA R 2000 ISSUES 

G eneral D escription - The Sheriff is currently addressing the "Year 2000 Issue" relating to its 
com puter system s and other electronic equipm ent. The Year 2000 lssue refers to the fact that 
m any com puter program s use only the last two digits to refer to a year. Therefore, both years 
1900 and 2000 would be referred to as "00" by the com puter. Com puter program s have to be 

adjusted to recognize the difference between those two years or the programs will fail or create 
errors. In addition, som e program s m ay not be able to recognize that 2000 is a leap year. 

The Sheriff M anagement Information Systems ("MIS") department is aware of the Year 2000 
Issues and has identified som e shortcom ings in the Tax Collector's electronic data processing 
system used to assess, collect and distribute the various taxes, fines, fees, and com m issions. The 
Sheriff's payroll system  is also vulnerable to the Y2K "bug". M any of the potential problem s 
involving "m ission-critical" system s have already been addressed. 

Stages of W ork - The Sheriff has identified several "mission-critical" systems (that is, critical to 
operations) and has or is subjecting those systems and equipment to the following stages of work 
to address Year 2000 Issues: 

Awareness Stage - identifying those system s which m ay be m ission-critical and establishing a 

project plan for dealing with the year 2000 issue. 

Assessment Stage - Identifying the system s and com ponents for which year  2000 com pliance 
w ork is needed. 

Remediation Stage - W hen the organization actually m akes changes to system s and equipm ent. 
This stage deals prim arily w ith the technical issues of converting existing system s or switching 
to com pliant system s. During this stage, decisions are m ade on how to m ake the system s or 
processes Year 2000 com pliant, and the required system changes ar e m ade. 

Validation/Testing Stage - Validating and testing the changes that were m ade during the 
rem ediation stage. 

The Sheriff has com pleted its awareness, assessm ent, and rem ediation stages for all of its 
m ission-critical system s and electronic equipm ent. The validation/testing stage is in process and 
is expected to be com pleted by N ovem ber 30, 1999. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH SIIERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA , LO UISIANA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY INFORM ATION (CONTINUED) 
A s of June 30, 1999, and for the Period 

July 1, 1998 to June 30, 1999 

(UNAUDITED) 

YEAR 2000 ISSUES (CONTINUED) 

M anagement of the Sheriff believes that the process described above will enable the Sheriff to 
process dale and/or date-related inform ation correctly before, during, and after January 1, 2000. 
ttowever, because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success 
of the related rem ediation efforts w ill not be fully determ i~able until the year 2000 and 
thereafter. M anagem ent cannot assure that the Sheriff is or w ill be year 2000 ready, that the 
Sheriff's rem ediation efforts w ill be successful in whole or in part, or that parties w ith whom the 
Sheriff does business w ith w ill be year 2000 ready. 
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GEN ERA L F UN D  

This Fund is the principal operating fund of the Sheriff's Office and is used to account for the financial resources 
and expenditures not accounted for in any other fund. 
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JEFFERSON PARISII SItERIFF'S OFFICE 

G RETNA, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
BALANCE SIIEET 
June 30.1999 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Share of pooled assets - general pool 
Inveslments 
Accounts receivable 

Ad valorem taxes 
Sales taxes 
lnlergovernmental 
Service charges, fees and commissions 
Interest 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Other tLssets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

abilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and deductions 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total l.iabilities 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Unreserved - designated 

800 M Hz radio system construction 
M atching of federal grants 
Construction/Repairs 
Contingencies 
Subsequent years' expenditures 

Unreserved - undesignated 

JUNE 30,1999 JUNE 30,1998 

$ 1,306,832 $ 

12,863,231 

55,129 
2,785,561 
1,640~35 
5,335,136 

6,649 
223,884 

2,909,482 
20,815 

55L613 

$ 27,146,954 $ 20,944,943 

1,150,930 $ 
1,789,576 
1,645,810 
76,850 

4,663,166 

644,947 

3,000,000 

1,000,000 
2,000,000 

15,838,841 

22,483,788 

TOq'AL I.IABILITIES AND FUN D BALANCE S 27,146,954 $ 

7 

7 
590 
376 
699 
667 

2,570,039 

3,000,000 
350.000 

8,352.6 



JEFFERSON PARISII SIIER1FF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LOUISIANA 

G ENERAL FUNI) 
STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE (GAAP BASIS) 
FO R ]lie YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES 

Taxes 
Inlergovernmental 
Service charges, fees nnd com m issions 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
M iscellan eous 

TOTAL REVEN UES 

EXI'ENDITURES 
Current 

Comm unity services 
Public safety 
Em ployee program s 

Imergovernmental 

Debt Service 
Principal 
Interest 

"IO TAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating tran sfers in 
Opertating transfers out 

TOTAL OTttER FINAN CIN G 

SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND O'I'ttER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 

Residual equity transfers 

l'nd of year 

-61- 

JUNE 30,1999 JUNE 30, 1998 

28,587,140 
11,068,444 
35,659,849 

946,112 
757.654 

78,019,199 

165,342 
68.837.059 

70,592,66 

7,426,538 

84,579 

(3,379,940) 

(3,295,361) 

8,352,6 

27,869,603 
11,265,911 
33,719,700 

941,625 
1,856,743 

75,653,582 

192,501 
65.495.502 

411,269 

29,238 
6,510 

67.135.020 

8,518,562 

98,548 

(7,661,344) 

(7,562,796 

955,766 

7,396,845 

22,483,788 $ 18,352,6 



~ t EFFERSON PARISII SIIERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
SC HEDUI,[ OF R EVENU~S. EXPENDITURES AND 
( IIANGES IN FUND BALANCE. ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS1 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3D, 1999 

t~e~ 
I ~,~r Roy er,,,,,~,,,~l 

M,scellm~ s 

EXPENDI] URKS 

P~bl~c safety 
e.,#oy~ p,ogr~a 

Debt S~ ice 
Principal 
Interest 

~8 587 t~0 $ 
I I 068 444 
)~ 659 849 

946,112 
7~7,654 

ADJUSTM ENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

t~qoIg) 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

g~49~18 $ 
ttg4,079 
5 580 gl0 

946,112 
757.654 

!gb~g000 $ 
1106i~O0 
~54~ 8~0 

949~00 
,693,~00 

7B~019,199 
__ __ .(~  . 78,0] B,013 77~733,350 

165,342 ]9.546 
68,837,059 (2.t61,715) 

1,5541512 

32345 (32.145) 
3,603 (3,603) 

70~592,661 (2~_7~  6g,414,744 

J~6.000 
70.224,050 

1,465,390 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNI. A'~ORABLE) 

8,BBB 
(3.548.706) 

8%122 

0.450.696) 

Exec s (DE FICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURF~S 7,426,538 2.1=76,731 9,603t269 5.867,9]0 3,735.359 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES rUSES) 

TOTAl OTI~R FINAN(ING 
SOURCI S [USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICI [NCy) OF REVENUES 
OVt:R ExrzNDn urgs AND OTIIER 
sotmces (USES) 

~UND BALANCE 
Beglnttlngofye~ 

Res[dualeq~i~ O~  

g4.579 $4,579 
(3,179,940) 

70.000 
3,122905 

]4579 
12S70~5 

4.131.17~ 2.176331 

Ig.352,6H (4,141ill0) 

-62- 

6307908 

4,210.90t 



JI'~I"FERSON PARISII SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

(;ENERAL EUND 
SCII~VUt.E Or REVENUES 
A('TUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS} 
}'OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

TAXES 
Ad valorem 
Sal~ and use 

IN1 ERGOVERNM EN3AL 
Federal 

Federal grants 
Housing fedcral prisoner s 

S~te 
State g,a.u 
Stale fcvet~ue 5~aring 
State supplemental pay 
B~ic ualnlng and other 
V~d~ pok~ all~ etio~ 

Local 
Reimbursed |alafi~ 

Air~,. ~ d other details 
O~  

SERV[CE CIIA RGF.S, FEES, 
AND

c
C
o
OM~'I!SSIONS 
o.,m ,ss,on~ 

te~es. "cem es. e~c 
Fin~, forfeitures, clc 
Other 

ct~tl a.d c,~.,i.at re~ 
Cou. attendance fees 
llousin8 ~ale prisoners 
I ~nspon~lion of pr*soners 
Feeding ~nd keeping of prisoners 

FINES AND FORtEII URES 
Fit~es and fo~~ilurcs 

Public L~signmenB 
Subtogallons 
Equipment usage 
O~er 

(GAAP BASIS) 
ACTUAL 

2 612,g96 $ 
5,974.244 

ADJUSTM EN]~ 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

28,ss7,14o (37.802) 

054,704 
112 

5.000 59,668 
,264,573 
,42),115 
14,198 

,544,925 

,844.80g 
,916.969 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

2612,896 $ 
5.936,442 

054704 
132 

1,844,808 
1,972,936 

2,700,000 $ 
5,92g,000 

,875,0C0 

,920,000 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLI'~ 

(UNFAVORABLE) 

(s7,1o4 
8442 

34704 
132 

3,16g 
(42?} 
16865) 
(5,802) 
84,925 

00,192) 
52,936 

I 1,068,444 I 15,635 I I,I 84,079 I 1,061,500 122fi79 

(79,240) 

221 

-63 

490,000 
330,000 
375,000 
498,500 

76,139 
5,lIt 
57.3?0} 
45.595 
(2:00} 

~tos~t 

64,154 

$ 284,663 



JEFFERSON PARISII SII ERI FF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA. IfOUISIANA 

Gt:NERAL fUnD 
SCIIEDULE OF ~XPENDITUR[S 
ACFUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR liIR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

(GAAV BASIS) 
ACTUAl. 

ADJUSTM ENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

COMMVNITy S~RVlCES 

Omc, 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

~UNFAVORABLE) 

10TAL COMMUNFI y SERyI( ES t65.342 19.$46 t84,g88 176,C~0 [g g381 

ptlBLIC SAFETV 

S~ i~ - sheriff 
Sal~i~ - d~p~U~ ~d tubers 

l~ es 

Geaer *J op~n6ng ext~ dlmr~ 
Ad-,~msi~g 

Phntlng 
Utilili~ 
eosL~gt 
3 elephone 

RepaJ~s ~ d maln*~ c ~ 

Oum d~ s~ i~  

p.sowf~lalcd costs 
o~e, 

Umro,,~ 
Aura ~d m~tno 
Other 

q[eavet ~d lodging 
Conva~fions ~ d seminms 

Piogr~  ~d a~ 6 vili~ 

D~ildin~s ~d im~fov emm~ 
Equipment 
vehides 

INTEBGOVERNM ENTAL 
Ieffe,~n Parish J~il Fund 
leffl,son Padsh Publi~ Schools 

"IOTA[. IN1 ERGOVERNMEN] AL 

~ :BT SERVlC~ 
~,,,dpal 

616486 
tg7~955 
462,767 

2,222,184 

40,784 

6,635 

(27,137) 
91 

10,49] 

27,649 
38.765 
47,8g0 
4,146 
1903 

(2323) 
42.5gS 
(22,~Io) 

404.743 
185,6$2 
505.$52 

2,t99,574 

200,000 
S6000 

]?6.SO0 
zls,c+a 
67S,O00 
s+l,~:+oo 
629.500 
292.000 

2.~6t,500 
6000 

Ij6~.000 

507U00 
198600 
583.500 

2276,600 

3,489,392 
--  (194,091~. 3,295,301 3,$65.700 2~0,399 

39,037 

139,037 -- --  114,282~ 124.'~$5 136,000 l 1,24S 

. . + 140.000 140.000 
501.607 (171,247) 330,360 ~38,000 S07,640 

4,2$1,839 
--  (I.930.754~. 2,32 L.085 2,80~.500 484+4t5 

4.753,446 (2.[02r001)" 2,651.445 3+7g~.500 1+132,055 

68,837,059 
-- --  12+t61rT] 5~. 66.675344 70,224,050 3548.706 

544.925 

9587 

2145) 
3,603) 

10TAI, DEB1 SERVICE 3~,74g 
--  I35,748~. 

460000 8,L92~ 



SPECIAL RE VEN UE FUN DS 

This Fund Type is used to account lc, r specific revenues that are restricted to expenditures for particular purposes 

COM M ISSARY SALES FUND 
The Commissary Sales Fund provides a concession service for the inmates of the Parish prison. All profits are used for the 
benefit of the inmates and prison needs not available from other sources. 

JUNIOR DEPUTY FUN D 
In accordance with LSA RS 33:1422, the Sheriffoan spend up to $50,000 annually to promote youth or junior deputy programs 
These funds are accounted for through the Junior Deputy Fund. 

STATE ASSET FORFEITURE FUND 
Under State statutes LSA RS 32:1550, the Sheriff receives 60 percent of the proceeds of contraband seized in cooperation with 
state/local law enforcement officials. The proceeds are used exclusively for law-enforcement activities. 

I~.t JDE PROGRAM  
Ihe RUDE Program (_Round Up for Drug Enforcement) allows Jefferson Parish citizens to round up their water bifis to the 
nearest whole dollar. The money is collected by the Parish W ater Department and remitted to the Sheriff to be spent on drug 
enforcement 

W IDOW S AND ORPtlANS 
1 he W idows and Orphans Fund receives contributions fiom the public. Tile proceeds are used to benefit widows and orphans of 
deputies killed in the line of duty. 

RECREATION AND RELIEF FUN D 
The Recreation and Relief Fund provides a vending machine service for the Sheriff's Offi ce. Profits from this fund are used for 
the benefit of employees, such as equipment for athletic teams and awards for meritorious service. 

DEPUTY SCttOLARSHIP FUND 
The Deputy Scholarship Fund receives contributions from various civic groups and other non-profit organizations. Educational 
expenses of deputies are paid from this fund. 

DRI.IG ENFORCEM ENT FUND 
Under the U.S. Departments of Justice and Treasury, the Sheriff participates in the "Equitable Sharing of Federally Forfeited 
Property" program. Under this program , the Sheriff receives 90 percent of proceeds collected from contraband property seized 
during law enforcement activities The proceeds are used exclusively for law.enforcement activities. 

M UI.TI-JURISD1C I 1ONAL TASK FORCE 
"fo account for the proceeds of various federal grants received through the 
ill narcotics investigations. 

PROJECI INCOM E 
To account for the project income generated by the Multi-Jurisdictional Task Force Grant These funds can only be expended on 
costs similar to those allowable under the grant. 

FEDERAL GRANTS 

To account for those federal grants received directly from the federal government and for those grants not accounted for in any 
other lund. The grants accounted for include COPS AHEAD, COPS M ORE, Gulf Coast lligh Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 
(tlIDTA), and Local Law Enlbrcement Block Grants passed through the Parish of Jefferson. 

LOCAL LAW  ENFORCEM ENT BLOCK GRANT 

To account for the proceeds of the Local Law Enforcement Block Grant program received directly from the U.S. l)epartment of 
.lustice. The funds are expended/distributed in acc~3rdance with the projects agreed to by the local law enforcement agencies. 
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JEF FFRSON PARISII SIIERII'I~'S OFFICE 
G RE'I NA, LOUISIANA 

SPFCIAI R[V[NU~ FUND~ XVITIt ANNI]AL RIJDG ETS 

COM BINING SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAl. AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR ]lie YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

Intergov~mmental 
S~~ic~ charges, fees and ~ m nussions 
~ines and forl~it,,res 

M ,sce~h.~o.s 

ExPI:NDIIUo~ s 
Cur,en, 

Community serv*ces 
Publicsafety 
Employeeprog~ ns 

347.969 
177,024 
38642 
10 546 

296,272 

3 706 

ADJUSTMEN1 S 
to 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

47,969 
77,024 
38,642 
10546 

300.640 

3 706 

362.700 

4000 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLEI 

6206U 

294 

EXCESS (DEFICIENC/) OF R/VENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 274.203 

-- . (4,368.~ 269,835 18B,400 

O'/HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Ope(ating transfers in 50.000 50.000 50,000 
Opeaallng UaOS f~s ~t (84,579) (84,579) (50,O00) 

TOTAL OlI~R FINANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DE~"ICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EX PEN Vl'l'UltdgS AnD OTHEr 
SOURCES (USESI 

FUND BALANCE 
Begmnlngofy~ar 

aes,dual equity I,andecs 

Endofyea, 

(34.579) 

239.624 

650 726 

S 
-- ~  (q.36s) s 

~34,579) 

235,256 

650726 

186,400 

650 726 

U4579) 



JEFFERSON PARISH SIIERIFP'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL R~VENUE FUNDS - COM M 'LYN 1 I'Y Sggx.'lCgS PUNCI"ION 
COM BINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CI IANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAl. AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.1999 

Taxes 
Into,go,Far nmenlat 
Scarce charges, fees and comlnt salons 
F~es and forfeilures 
b~tereat 
M iscellan~ us 

3,339 

9310 
22 

EXPENDITURES 
CuFr~ I 

Salari~ alld bcneBIs 
Cq:.ex al operatgng expe6itur ~ 
Materials and suppli~ 
Coat ors~ ds sold 
Tr,v~l 
Pr0gr~ s ~hd acllvltle* 
Mis~llan~  
Cmpi~l ovtlay 

3,277 
S0840 
209.607 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

l,]SS 
3,213 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

4,432 

209,607 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 263r724-  
4,368 26B,092 

0000 

7500 

232,0C~ 

s.oc~ 

EXCESS (D EFICIENC%') OF REVIENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 88,947 

-- --  ( 4, 3__68~_ 84,579 50,000 

o] IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating tr ansfe~ i~ - . . 
Opelxating tr~sfers oul (84,579) (84,579) (s0,o~) 

~ 1 ol AI o] iiliR ]- INANCINO 
SO'Ov,(:'~S i~SiiS) 

EXCZSS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXpENDI I URES AND OTIIER 
SOURCES IriSES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beglnl~ing of year 

R~idual equity transfers 

End of year 

4368 

357,804 357,804 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

{UNFAVORABLE) 

-72- 

(432) 
~93 

22,393 

750 
1,000 
5,000 

(34,s791 



JEFFERSON FARISII SIIERIFF*S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - COM M UNITY SERVICES FUNCTION 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR ]lie YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

1 ~es 
Im~lovcfnmemll 
Se~ic~ charge, f~  ~ d ~ mmissions 
Fi~~s a~d forf~itor~ 
[nler~  
Misceltan~ s 

EXPENDITURES 
Curr~ t 

Satari~ and bcnefi~ 
Oener i~ operating ~xFeditur~ 
Malerlmls and suppli~ 
Cost or g~ dl told 
1ravel 
pfogt ants and actlviti~ 
Mis~ l~an~ s 
Capi,~l outlay 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF Rt:VEr~UES 
OVER E~pENDITURES 

Ol llER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} 
Opclat mg uansfels m 
Opc,l..~  ..,,~r~,~ out 

101 kl OTtlER FINANCINO 
SOURCES (USES) 

EX O:SS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXI'~,:NDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (usl:s) 

FUND BAIA NC~ 
B~gin~ingoryear 

g~idusiequity~ansferl 

Endofye~ 

3,330 
801 

]0.505 
22,043 

21,583 

72,560 

ADJUSTM EN1 S 
10 

BIJDGE IARV 
BASIS 

BUDGE]ARY 
BASIS 

3,330 
801 

2,600 
950 

10,505 
22,043 

~O.SO0 
25.7~0 

2S,~ 0 
3,~ 0 
L oo0 

VARIAN(E 
FAVORABI.[ 

~UNFAVORABLE 

7JO 
149) 

(s 
3.6S~ 

2S.O~  
3,000 
i 00o 

50,000 50,000 

21,583 

72,560 

ti,65o) 

72,560 

$ 33,233 



JFFEERSON PARISII SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GREINA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - COM M UNITY SERVICES FUNCTION 
COM BINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDG ET (BUDGETARY BASIS} 
i~OR I[IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

Tax~ 
lnte,govcrnmenlal 
S~~ic~ chugs , fees and ~ mmisslons 
Fines and for feltur~ 
InLe,~t 
Miscelhn~  

COMM UNI f~ SERVICES ,~ DNC] ION 

333.339 

22,640 
823 

EXPENVtT'UI~ S 
C..em 

S~ltri~ aad benefits 
Ge~eral operating expedltu~  
Maledals and supplle$ 
co~1 of sood~ ~ol~ 
lrav~l 

M iscelhnL~us 

13,782 
72,g83 
~09,607 

ADJUSIM EN]S 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

1,155 
3,213 

EXCESS (DEHCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 60.530 (4,~6~ 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES IUSESI 
Opersling uans fers in 50,000 
Ope~allng uansfe,s out (g4,579) 

TO]A[ O]HER FINANCING 
so UV.CF~S (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF P.t:v ENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTllgg 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Bcginnlng of year 

Residual equity t r ~sfets 

~,nd of year 

25,951 

430,364 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

333,339 

22,640 
823 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

~UNFAVORABEE) 

3.339 

2,540 
(127) 

356,802 351,050 5352 

14,937 
76,096 
209.607 

300.640 

500CO 

(s4,5~9) 

21,583 

430,364 

14,5~  
80,450 
232,000 
25.000 
3750 
2 000 

01,650) 

430.364 

$ 456.315 $ 
__ ~ ....m .~ .~,3.~68) $ 451,947 $ 418,714 $ 

-74- 

4,354 
22393 
25,000 
3 750 
2 000 
I)O0 

0Z5791 

94,57~  



J EFFERSON PARISH SIIERIPF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION 
COM BINING SC]IEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDG ETARY BASIS) 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

la~es 
h,tergover nmeBlal 
se~,ce cha,g.s. I~cs Jr,d comm,~s,ons 
F,n~s and forfeitures 
Int~,~t 
Miscetl~ s 

EXFE~D~TVRES 
Current 

S~l~t~ ~d beoef:J 
Gene,~d operating expedilut~ 
Materlals and suppli~ 
Cost of goods sold 
Travel 
Plograms and actlviti~ 
Miscetl~ s 
Capital outlay 

"TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

77024 
3,697 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
op~rat~.g t,ansf~[~ ,n 
Opertating lr ansrcts out 

~ OTAI OTHER FINANf [NG 
SOL~BCES (USFS) 

EXC~.SS (I)EFICIENC'fI OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Btginnln8 ofye~ 

g~idual equity transfers 

End of y~  

KU3US~f MENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

-75- 

BIADGETARY 
BASIS 

77024 
3 697 

6S 000 
2500 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABI.E~_ 

180,721 167,500 13,221 



JEFFERSON PARISII SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRE1NA. LOUISIANA 

SPECIAt, REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION 
COM BINING SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
EOB TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3~. 1999 

s~m ~ ~h~,~cs. f=es a,~ com~.ssio.s 
Frees end for feitur ~ 
Inleresl 
Mi~cdlan~o~ 

RUDE PROGRAM 

3.778 
6,80J 

TOTAl REV~iNUES 10.581 

E~'eEI~I~ITUrES 
Cu.~ t 

Salari~ and b~eflrs 
O~ uat opiating txpedltuf~ 
Materiels ~ d suppli~ 
Col~ of g~ ds |old 

erog,~ s ~d a~ivit;~ 
Mi$~llan~  
Cepilal outlly 

TOTAL EXI'ENDITLFRES 

EXCESS (OEi~ICI~-;NCYI OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES I 0,Slq 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
o~,cr*llng uamfers in 
Openallng tlans fers out 

O1 AL O1 IIER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFI~1ENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER E)@ [NBITURES ANB O] IIER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALA ffCi~ 
Beglnnlng or ye~ 

Reslduat equity ttansf~$ 

End ofy~  

10,58 

6741 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

-76- 

BUDGETARy 
BASIS 

~778 
,5.803 

3 500 
7 SO0 

275 
6~)7 

)O, SBI LI,oOO (4t9) 

10,5gl I 1,000 (419) 

10,58 

67,41 

II.000 

67411 

(4t9 



J[" FFERSON PARISll StlERIFF'S OFFICE 
G I/rE I~NA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFE I'Y FUNCTION 
COM BINING SCKEDULE OF REVENUES, EKPENDI | URES 
AND CIIANG ES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGE]" {BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR ]'lie YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

t~  

F/n~ and forfeit'dr~ 
Ime,est 
Miscdl~ us 

tOTAl, EXpFNDItUKES 

t:XCESS {D~VICBr.~CVl OE RgVESU r.S 
OVER EXpI~NDITURES 

OTBgR rL'q ~,NC~SG sources (~s~s) 
operate,s uansCe,s in 
Opertatiag Irans f~! out 

TOTAl Ol HER FINANCING 
sota~cEs (usEs) 

EXCESS (DI2HCIENCYI OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPEN DITU RI'~S AND OTII gR 
SOURCES (USES) 

H ;nD BALA~CI: 
aeg~nn~ngotyca, 

Endofyear 

TOTAL. I"UBLIC SAFETY ["UNCTION 

ACFUAL 

77.024 
747S 
6.g9~ 

9t,302 

~7411 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 

BUDGE~ABY 
BASIS 

-77- 

B~BGgTARY 
BASIS BUDGET 

77,024 
7,475 
6,803 

65.000 
6,000 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABL~  

2,024 
E47S 

191.302 178,5~  12,B02 

91302 

67dll 

7850D 

~741[ 



JEFFERSON PARISII SIIERIFE'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EM PIA)YEE PROGRAM S FUNCTION 

COMBINING SCllEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANG ES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
EOR File YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

tm~g,,ve+ement*l 
Se~i~ ~haeg~, fee6 and ~mmisslons 
Fiaes ~d forfeitures 
Inlereat 
Miscellsn~  

EXpEndITUReS 
Corfenl 

Salarle+ and benefits 
Genera] ope,sting ~ pedit.+~ 
Materi|ls and suppli~ 
Cosl of g~ ds ~ ld 
Tra, el 
programs and acfi villes 
tq,scella~ o~s 
( apital outlay 

229 
2,920 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF ~ VENUES 
OVER EXPENDI] URES 3,149 

O] IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
operating I,..ffer~ in 
Ope~atlng uansfers out 

TOTAL O]HER FINANCING 
SOI/RCES (USES) 

t~XCLgS (U~t'tCtE~qC'~) OF tLgVgN13gS 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginniagofyear 

Residual~quitytra~sfers 

Endofyear 

3,149 

2,964 

ADJUSTM ENTS 
10 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

78- 

BUDGE] AR~ 
BASIS 

229 
2,920 

3.149 

3,149 

2,964 

150 
3,000 

3,150 

2,964 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

~ N FA VORABt,I':~ 

79 
(SO) 

$ 6.1t3 $ 6414 $ 



JEF,~ERSON PARISH SIIERIFF'S OF,~I( E 
G RE~I NA, LOUISIANA 

SpE( IAL REVENUE FUNDS EM |'LOYEE I'ROGRAM S FUNCTION 
COM BINING SCtlEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CIIANGES iN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET {BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

Ta~  
Intetgovernmental 
Semlce charge, fees and~ mmiss;ons 
Finesand forfeitures 
Inter~t 
Miscegtan~ s 

EXPENDITURES 
Cu,,e~t 

S,lar,~s R.~ benefits 
Genera] operating e~peditur ~s 
Matlrials and soppti~ 
Cost of g~ d$ sold 
T~avd 
P[og/~ s and ictlviti~ 
M iscellan~ us 
Capi~l outlay 

IOTAL EXPENDn'UKES 

t4.630 

5022 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENI)ITURF.S I 5r946 

O'[ IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating U arts fets in 
Op~ tlng transf~s ~ t 

TOTAL O1 IIEP, FINANCfNG 
SOURCES/USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTII .g~R 
SOURCES (USES) 

;'UND BAIM.NCE 
Beginning of year 

Residual ~qoity ffet~s feel 

15946 

8~ 617 

ADJUSTMENTS 
TO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

-79- 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

14.630 

5,022 

5,000 

4,400 

15.946 l~,4OO 

i5.946 

88617 

tSao0 

886t7 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLE) 

(37o) 

622 



JEEFERSON PARISH SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAl. REVENUE FUNDS - EM PLOYEE PROGRAM S FtINC'I'ION 
COM BINING SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES~ EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANG ES IN ];UND BALANCES - AC'I UAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS} 
I~OR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

lnlergovffnm~lal 
Se~i~ ~hacges, f~  tad commissions 
Fine~ and forfcRm~ 
[ntu~  3.276 
Misc~llan~ us 

TOTAL REVENUES 
__  

3,276_  

EXPENDITURES 
Cua~nt 

Sal~6~ and he,eats 
G~ner~ opcrati.S *xm aiu,re* 
Matcflals and suppJi~ 
Cost of goods sold 
Travel 
Programs and acfivilies 
Miscellaneous 
Capital outlay 

EXCESS (pEFICIENC~) OF REVENUEs 
OvEr EXPENOITURES 3,276 

O1 IIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
O~raLmg uansrcr s in 
Ogcnating ul~,fers ~  

7OTAI. OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
a*vnnlng of y=~ 

Rcsldual cqulty tta~f~~ 

End of yeu 

3.276 

ADJUSTfl:JENT S 
lO 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

-80- 

BtIDG~TARY 
BASIS 

3.276 

3.276 3.000 



JEFFERSON pARISII SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAl. REVENUE FUNDS - EM PLOYEE PROGRAMS FUNCTION 
COM BINING SCH EDULE OF R~VENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND C||ANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1999 

la~cs 

gi~~s and f~rfehufes 
interest 
M lsceilane~ s 

TOTAL-EMpLOYEEPROGRAMSFUNC~ION 

~,S27 
920 

UKpENDITURES 
Co,rent 

salar~  and beaef, ts 
Gcn~a] operatlng ~xpe~i~res 
M atcrlals a~d suppIi~ 
Cost ofg~ dt so]d 
T,a~el 
PIosr&mJ ~  acfiv}l)~ 

Capital ~ tl~y 

TOTAL EX~ENDHURES 

3,706 

EXCESS (DgI~ICIENCY) Or REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 22,37] 

OTHER I~'INANCING SOURCES (USES) 
O~,~ing ~ansfers i. 
Openaling ~ransfers o~t 

] O] AI OTHER HNANCING 
SOURCES IUSESI 

tXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND O] llER 
SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
B~gmnlng of year 

g~,~,,al equity i, aasf~rs 

End of year 

22,37 

~2.95 

AD JI.)STM~NTS 
7[0 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

-81- 

BUDGETARY 
BASIS 

2,920 

3,706 

s~o 
ooo 

4.000 

22,37t 21,5S0 

22,37 

52,95 

21,550 

52.951 

VKKIKNCE 
FAVORABLE 

~ FAVORABLE) 
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D E B T SER VICE F UN D S 

This Fund Type is used to account for the accum ulation of resources for the paym ent of principal, interest, and other 
related costs of the Sheriff's outstanding bonds. 

LAW ENFORCEMENT DISTRICT (LED) 1992 SERIES SINKING FUND 

To account for the paym ent of the current year's principal and interest requirem ents on the 1992 Law Enforcement 
District Refunding Certificates of Indebtedness. M onthly deposits out of the surplus revenues of the General Fund 
are to be made into this fund in an am ount equal to one-sixth of the interest falling due on the next interest payment 
date and one-twelfth of the principal falling due on the next principal payment date. 

-83- 



JEFFERSON PARISII SIIERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, LOUISIANA 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BAI,ANCE SIIEET 
June 30,1999 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Share ofpooled assets- general pool 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Fund Balance 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserved - undesignated 

LED 
1992 SERIES 

SINKING FUND 

JUNE 30, 1999 JUNE 30, 1998 

$ $ 

232,225 

232,225 

TOTAL IAABILITIES AND FUN D BA I.ANCE 232
,225 $ 

-84- 

213.17G 

213.170 

213.170 

213.17~) 

213.170 



JEFFERSO N PARIStl SH ERIFF'S O FFICE 
G RETNA, LO UISIANA 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CIIANG ES IN FUND BALANCE 
FOR 111E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 

REVENUES 

Taxes 
lr~tergovernmental 
Service charges, fees and comm issions 
Fines and forfeitures 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 

JO TA[. REVEN UES 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Fiscal charges 

TOTAl. EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

()TILER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfcrs in 
Opertating transfers out 

TOTAt, OTttER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 

SOURCES (USES) 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year 

Residual equity transfers 

-85- 

$ 

LED 
1992 SINKING 
SINKING FUND 

JUNE 30, 1999 JUNE 30, 1998 

20,243 

20,243 

765,000 
82,848 
1,245 

849,093 

(828,850) 

84'7,905 

847,905 

19,055 

213.170 

725,000 
119,098 
1,398 

845.496 

(824,490 

g45,(140 

(19.559 

825.48 

99 

212.179 

$ 232,225 $ 213,170 
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CAPITAL PR OJE C T F UN D S 

This Fund Type is used to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the constru ction or 

acquisition of major capital facilities, structures and equipment. 

COM M UN ICATIONS RESERVE 

To account for the accum ulation of funds relating to the developm ent and construction of an 800 M HZ radio system 
within the Parish of Jefferson for use by the Sheriff and other participating m unicipalities. The prim ary source of 
funding for the project is the excess revenues derived from the General Fund through the 1994 1/4 cent sales tax. 
Additionally, a COPS Technology grant was acquired in 98/99 which provided $3,000,000 to the project. 

W ESTBANK ADM INISTRA TIVE BUILDING 

To account for the accum ulation of funds for the acquisition of a new W estbank Adm inistration Building. The 
primary funding source is the excess revenues derived from the General Fund. 

FIRING RANGE 

To account for the accum ulation of funds to construct and or purchase a new firing range for use by the Sheriff 

-87- 
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IN TERNAL SER VICE F UND S 

This Fund Type is used to account for the Sheriff's self-insurance funds which provide insurance coverage for all of 
the Sheriff's risks of loss. 

AUTO LOSS AND GENERA L LIABILITY FUN D 

This fund provides coverage for property damage and personal injury cases caused by employees of the Sheriff. 
Limited coverage is provided through participation in the Louisiana Sheriff's Risk M anagement Program ( a public 
entity risk pool). This program provides coverage on professional liability cases at the rate of $100,000/claim 
$500,000/aggregate. For am ounts in excess of this coverage, the Sheriff is self-insured. For auto loss claim s, the 
Sheriff is 100 percent self-insured. All claim s are accounted for in this fund. 

GI~.OUP IIEAI.TH AND LIFE INSURA NCE FUND 

This fund pays m edical and dental claim s of the Sheriff's employees and their covered dependents. "lhe Sheriff 
does have a re-insurance policy with a private carrier which provides "stop-loss" coverage. Funding com cs fion 
the Sheriff's Gencral Fund and from charges for prem ium s collected from em ployees. 

RADIO/LAPTOP IN SURANCE 

This fund provides coverage against loss of hand-held radios and laptop computers due to negligence. Funding 
comes from charges for premiums collected from employees. Participation is voluntary and is subject to a $200 
deductible. 

W EAPONS INSURANCE FUND 

This fund provides coverage against loss of arm s and weapons due to negligence. Funding comes from charges for 
premiums collected from employees. Participation is voluntary and is subject to a $50 deductible. 

-91- 
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Agency Funds ate used to account for assets held by the Sheriff as an agent for individuals, private organizations, 
other governm ents and/or other funds. 

TAX COLLECTOR FUND 

Article V, Section 27 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the Sheriff will serve as the Ex-Officio 
Tax Collector of the state and parish taxes and fees levied within the parish boundaries. This fund is used to collect 
and distribute these taxes and fees to the appropriate taxing bodies. 

SIIERIFF'S ACCOUNT 

This fund is used as a depository for collections of civil suits, Sheriff's sales, successions, garnishm ents, and 
redemptions. Distributions frmn the fund are made to various parish agencies and litigants in suits in the m anner 
prescribed by law . 

INM ATE DEPOSIT FUN D 

This fund is used to account for individual prisoner account balances while in custody of the Jefferson Parish 
Correctional Center. Funds are deposited in the name of the prisoner and payable upon written request. Balances in 
the individual prisoner accounts are returned upon termination of jail sentence. 

PROPERTY AN D EVIDEN CE 

]'his fund is used to account lbr m onies found by individuals and subsequently turned over to the Sheriff's Offi ce 
uutil claimed. 

NARCOTICS SEIZURE FUND 

This fund is used as a depository for funds seized in connection w ith attests for narcotics violations 
disbursed upon resolution of the case to the Drug Enforcem ent Special Revenue Fund. 

JU VENILE PROCESSIN G AN D LOCK-UP CENTER 

This fund is used to account for that portion of the 1994 sales tax revenues dedicated by the Sheriff to Jefferson 

Parish (a separate entity) for the construction of a new central booking and lock-up facility for processing juveniles 
under arrest. Funds will be disbursed to the Parish upon construction completion. 

COURTROOM  CONSTRUCTION FUN D 

This fund is used to account for that portion of the 1994 sales tax revenues dedicated by the Sheriff to Jefferson 

Parish (a separate entity) for the construction of a new courtroom facility for use by the District Court. Funds wi 
be disbursed to the Parish upon construction com pletion. 



JEFFERSON PARIStl SIIERIFF'S O FFICE 
GRETNA~ I.OUISIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
( OM BIN1NG BALANCE St|EET 
JUNE 30,1999 

Cash ~ d cash ~qulvalcats 
Sabre o1" p~ led assets - General Pool 
Share of p~ l~d assets - Bmeau P~ I 
Investments 
Accounts rtcrivabl~ 
Acc~cd hat~rest 
Due from other funds 

L1AI~|LITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Liabilhles 
Due to other funds 
Due to taxing bodies and others 

Fm~d Equity 
Falld Balances 

Total Fund Equity 

3OTA[ LiABELITJES AND 
FUND EQUITY 

TAX 
COLLECTOR 

SIIERIFF'S 
ACCOUNT 

INMATE 
DEPOSIT 

PROPERLY 
AND 

EVIDENCE 

21,677 $ 
49.640 

3],002 $ 
45.579 

1,073 
2),020 

$ 33,723,093 $ 1,171,317 $ 176,581 $ 24,093 

-96- 



NAECO11CS 
SEIZURE 

JUVENILE 
PROCESSING 

AND 
LOCK-UP CENTER 

907,838 

COURTROOM 
CONSTRUCTION 

$ 907,838 $ 1,584,244 S 

3,966 $ 
26,513 

48,490 $ 
859,348 

84,244 $ 
,500,000 

JUNE 30,1999 JUNE 30,1998 

1,342,010 S 
2,546,654 
$3,723,093 

190,452 $ 
37,427,193 

275,32 

70,097 
34,055.676 

30.479 907,838 1,584,244 37,617,645 34,]25,773 

$ 1,584,244 $ 37,617,645 $ 34,125,773 



JEFE ERSON PARISII SBERIFE'S OFFICE 
GRE] NA. I.OI31SIANA 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COM BINING SCIIEDULE OF CIIANGES IN 
DEPOSIT BALANCES DUE TO ]'AXING BODIES AND OTIIERS 
FOR I lie YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.1999 

TAX 
COLI.ECTO[~ 

SHERIFF'S 
ACCOUNT 

INMATE 
DEPOSIT 

PROPERTY 
AND 

EVIDENCE 

DEPOSIT BALANCES DUE TO TAXING BODIES 
AND OTHERS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 30.436.579 $ 1,003.67] $ 134.532 $ t8,881 

Dcposlu 
Shc,iffs sal~ 
Oamlshments 
].mam deposlm 
Ome, 

T*x. o.e+ ~ mm~ssions h a oth~ fe~ 
tmerest 

1 oial Add~llon$ 

REDUC1 IONS 

D~  S~med To 
SherilVs Gtneral Fund 
Taxlmg bodi~ and others 
Li0gznls/defcndams 
Attorneys, appraise , and othe~ 

Olhe+ Rcductmns 
Commlsslry Salm Fund 
Inmme withdrawals 
profmsionll scrvicm 
Amounts paid to other funds 
Am~ nts ab*ndoned to State 
Bank se~ic~ ~hargo 

TotalRedvc6ons 

DEPOSIT BALANCES DUE TO TAXING BODIES 
AND OTHERS AT END OF YEAR 

496+928,992 
1.707,257 

504747 

8, IOS 

498,636,249 10,049,973 512,852 

59,640,446 
435,709,289 

1826,361 
339,182 

4,0L0,935 
3+584,618 

19,790 
1,431 
I0 

6,361 

206 

302,337 
15g.9BO 

2,746 

173 

495,349,735 9,882+327 470,g03 

910 

072 
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NARCOTICS 
SEIZURE 

JUVENILE 
PROCESSING 

AND 
LOCK-UP CENTER 

48.490 

COURTROOM 
COM BINED TOTALS 

JUNE 30.1999 JUNE 30, 199S 

$ I.$40. 67 $ 34A 25,773 $ 

__ __  3~96~  48,490 1~4,244 509.341.756 

6L614,~26 

4,010,935 
3,584,824 

302,337 
158,950 

122,536 
1,131 
183 

4S8,776,0$~ 

59,707.543 

4,416.626 
3,346,[36 

302.663 
219,752 

h56,~81 

446 

$ 907,838 $ 1.584,244 $ 37,617,645 $ 34,125.77~ 

-99 
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JEFFERSON PARIS}I SllER|~PS O~'HC~ 
G RE1 NA, LOUISIANA 

SCIIEDUI-E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAl,, STATE & LOCAL AW ARDS 
FOR 1 liE Year Ended June 30 1999 

FkINDING AGENCY 
GRAN[ 

! EI)~rAI AwARDs 

I)1Rf.(7 PROGRAMS: 

u s DepartmEnt ov JUsTIC~ 

om~ of co~ .+~ o~c.l~ Poli+i,~ 
COPS AIIEAD (Project STAR) 

cops u~ ~,,~ 16.nS P~V~  

COPS MOI~ 96. T*chnolosy O~ t 

COpS MORE 9g - Equipment Gram 

cops. ~ T~ olosy oral (soo Mm  halo) 

COPS. 99 1 ethnology Grit (L~plop ('ompmerfl 

Scsti~ Mm ~cm~., Divifi~  
o ~ iz~d C~ c O~t ~ forc~m~t T~,k FO,~ (oc DI~FI 

DEA - S~ c ~d ~  Task Fo,~ Ovm ~mc AsslgPmc,,t 

D.,u. or P*+.m  

U S m~ h~)l', om~ 
Equi~bk Sharing of Fe~ r~ly Forf~i~rd Ptopc~y 

TOTAL. US DEpAkTM EN] OF JUSTICE 

OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY 

9g HIDTA . S~~ & Local Assi~ . Lo ~isi~a Oulf Coast Initiatlv~ 

9g HIDTA - g~  & Local Assi~ , pwjcct STAR 

99 IIIDTA - S~~ & ~  A.is~  - M~agcmcnl & C~ rdln~io. 

} IIDTA+ S~e & ~  Assis~ c. ~ ifi~a Oul[ Coast Inltiulve 

99 IIIDTA - S~e & Lo~l Assis~ ~~. Proj~~ STAR 

99 IIIDTA ~ s~, & l~ al Assis~ cc - AI+I+~  * Operation C~,,~r 

9~ IIIDTA . S~IC & L~ al Assis~ ~~ - Mid4k Looisi~m Map, In,csUgallOOl 

9y IIID] A . Salt & h,e,d As.lsmn+ ~ Missim ppi Opcrgmn, Conic, 

~9 IIIDTA . Sm;c & Im al Assis~ m Tn.S++c Su+cillm+m h m, 

99 IIIDTA . State ~ ~ 1Assis~ cc. Tfi -County Maror Invgstigal;OnS 

99 IIID3A ~ $m~ & L~ al Assh~  - Wlleh C~ntc+ 

10TAL. OFFICE OF NA'/tONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICy 

SOCIAL SECURITy ADb|INISTRA] ION 
hmv~ Incc~6sc Ca) meal P~g~  

(Continued) 

CFDA 
NUM BER 

16710 (Nl) 

16710 (M) 

16710 (M) 

16710 (M) 

1671O (M) 

16710 (b~) 

o+ "0nk,,o~  

0t U,,tlm~. 

0+ U,,~<.o~  

O7 Un~,m ~  

O+ UnI+~ ~. 

U~ Unknot,. 

O~ t~nt .n,m 

O7 UnU,o,,n 

(;SANT ID 
NUM BER 

9S-CC-WL 0225 

9~ C-WX-0m  

9~cvwx.e~  

1999-CL-WX~254 

91-CK-WX~05~ 

1999~K.WX~021 

Vm ous hv~fligati+ l 

98LBVX~2Ol 

- 102- 

NLL 9gOl~2 

Unknown 

GRAnt PERIOD 
FR~  ~'O 

I-Ap:-95 

I +D~~.95 

I-0=496 

I+Apr.99 

I -O~t-9~ 

30-lun-9t $ 

30-Ap~99 

30-Sel~9E 

31-M~ O 

30-Sep-9B 

30-Sop-99 

GRANf 
AW ARD 

2,194+954 [I 

4,1 ~0,249 [i 

u go.ooo (i 

S31,950 

icm ,sn 

~,3oo)oo 

emi+:t C~ #ti~ R~imb~,~mcnt 

+oct ~1 3o Sc,o ,,(, l t,3+ +u 

p,m~~~ ( ompkt~o. Rond+m~cm~m 

~ nlA m a 

i.|m.98 

I.J+ 9s 

i.l~ .,+9 

1.1~ .99 

tq~, 99 

LASt96 NIA N/A N/A 



 

ACCRUED/ 
(DEFERRED) 
REVENUE 

JUNE30,1998 

FEDERAL AND STALE 
ASSISTANCE RECEIVED 

DURING YEAR 
GRAN1S OTIIER 

22.6[2 

132 

61399 

50374 

95 963 

ACCRUED/ 
(DEFERRED) TOTAL 
R~:VlCNUE REVENUE 

JUNE 30. t999 RECOGNIZED 

16 135 

623~962 

g938 

13.369 

3,472 

64~597 

g74336 

319~963 

I q~J2 t~2 

1~337 

12S,~ 9 

23,794 

132 

EXPENDITURES 
FEDERAL/STATE LOCAl. 

48419g 

623962 

o(xJl~RJ 

{RJ2 t~62 

t5 337 

13.369 

23.794 

L32 

836,047 ~36,047 602,6[0 

161399 

2~1k]74 

__  462~61~ I __  4.793.574 620r336 -- . 
Ir76~.$3S 617201]37 5!~66k364 5r221.608 

96,621 

17,652 

47,263 

20200 

96.621 

231.552 

325.710 

43 865 

213.987 

148975 

31271 

33.709 

427~887 

427,422 

54936 

427,g87 

42~422 

54 v3fi 

7727g 

33,~09 

728 gO2 I1244T814 1,244,gl4 

03- 

TOTAL 
EXPENDIgURES 

!J 3!~ 13, 

1~337 

125969 

23,794 

132 

602,610 

10~797Z 



JEFFERSON PARISII SltERIFF'S OFFICE 
GRETNA, lOUISIANA 

SCIIEDUI.E OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE & LOCAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 
Foa 1,1~ Year F, ndea June ~o. 1999 

FUNDING AGENCY 
GRANT 

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 
FAA K+0 E~p~os~v ~ t~~,~ T~  P,osr~  + 97m  

1 o1 AL- ~EI)t.~  L AVIA] ION ADMINISTRATION 

us DEPARTMEN1 OF 1lie TREASURV 
V S C~stom, 

TOTAl, DIREC1 pROGRAMS 

PAS~IHROUGIIAWARDS: 

U.S D[PARIM~~T OF JUSTICE 

CooMin~ing Council 
Co~~~io,+l Op~ s P~j+m -rY COO pm 

Unint+opt+]~ pQwcr S~pply ( UPS} Syslm  

G~g Unit Comp~tc+ 

Nat+o~;l C~mi+  Hlttq~ Implo.~m~m progr+m ~ CIiP/LAA[IS) VV99 

p,+++a ~,,o.++ t+,.,++~+ ( o.,m,+++o. 
on to,, enI++,.+,++m 

N+6on~ ( dmilml lii+(+~ Impro+cmcnt ploglam (NCtIP/LAAFtS) 

St loci Climi~  Alien Assls~ c~ plog~  

G~g gcsis~  FMu cation ~d Training (GREAT) 

Cnn+~ Lab Up~m~ 

St,oct o~g aed~ulon '97 

Multi+Jansdictina~ Tcsk For~ 

(Continucd) 

CFDA 
NUM BER 

Unknown 

Unkno~n 

16592 

16592 

t~ 554 

t* s~2 

t657~ 

t* s19 

L~$79 

16579 

16~79 

16s~9 

16579 

16S79 

lost9 

GRANT ID 
NUMBER 

GRANT PERIOD 
ER'+6"r~ TB 

23.D~c.97 

+.Ocl+9g 

30.Jun+g8 

3+J Svp vv 

GRANT 
AW ARD 

Unk~  Proim Complfli~ R~imbu~mcnl (41 

Unloto~  

Umk~ wn 

I-J~ -97 

LIn g7 

COOP AGREEMENT ~ oct 9b 

9~ Ap VX 01~+2 l-~ t.~6 

97.B?.B.24-0101 l-Sop-98 

B99-7+12 i-S~p 99 

L98+8~306 I-1ul-97 

97.BT.B 07~092 I 1~-98 

9glBT.B O7-0O86 I-Oct-95 

97+BT+B 02 OG2S l -Oct -97 

98-BTB 02.Of129 i D~~ 98 

95 B7 B 02.OE42 i J~ gS 

- 104- 

30~Suv-9~ 

31-~ c-9~ 

147r334 (1 

9,762 (I 

16vt2 (l+ 

2~,640 (t) 

~l.eeo 

20,320 

m s~ u 

35461 (~ 



 

Fi,:DERA L AN I) S I A1 E 
ASSIS] ANCE RECEIVED 

DURING YEAR 
GRANTS OILIER 

1OTAL 
REVENUE 

RECOGNIZED 
EX PENDI'fL RES 

FEDERAL/STATE I.OCAL 

t~47 124 ~00 K02 93755 t)2 953 ~02 

5,742 80,$00 1~6 242 gO,SO0 5,742 

31,t)47 124~000 6r544 80,5(~0 1731453 
-- --  

6r544 

m ~  o~59 7[r0S9 

]O]AI 
EXI'~:NDI lURES 

937~$ 

$6242 

67Sr39~  ~  $~696 981 616TSBO ~  ~$78rl40 8r226,~7 ?t~ p631 5,22B+15~ I2,SI I~TE) 

K,7~(I 

~,05S 

X~TK~ 

276r9~6  108~g01 

21,600 

]3.7~  

35461 

g609 

- 105- 

38~,797 

385r797 . 276r996 1081g0t 

7264 

21 7K~ 

94 7~4 

32,885 

~10()0 

5 162 

14~lpX) 

34 liJ3 

~9293 

24,276 



JLFFERSON PARISH S}II':R[FF'S O'~ ;:ICE 
G RE FNA. LOUISIANA 

SCIIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE & LOCAL AWARDS {CONTINUED) 
I~OR TIIE Year Ended June 30. 1999 

FUNDING AGENCY/ 
GRANT 

Combmafim Invemigatlm 

Comb+~ m  t.++m+~t+o~ 

D~g Abuse gesls~  Educatloa (DARE.)- 98/99 

Tot~l p~, th~ g~ Loui~im~ Commlss~o. 
m Law E~for~m~ l 

TO1 AL. U.S DEPARTMENT OF J USTIC~ 

DLPA R1 MENT OF EDUCA1 ION 

Govcmo, s Saf~ md Dmg.F~  Schoots Prog,+n 

TOTAL- DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

EtJERA L EM ERGEnCy MANAG~.:M I~nT J+.CENCV 

En,~rs~cy A.is~  (H,~In~  C~org~) 

TOTAL ~ FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
AGENCY 

FEDERAl+ IIIGIIWAy ADMINISTRATION 

p~scd ~ ugh ~ isi~  Ilighway S~cty Cmnmissioa 
Safe ~d Sobc, Ovcnim~ Cam p.dga,. 99100 

LU MVq~ - A~idcmc RepO~ Tminin8 

tOt^u - FKD~r~L IIIGtlW AV ̂ ~mlnlstraTIon 

+otal,. PASS ~ tlROUGII AW ARDs 

~OtAc t ED~RA L AW ARDS 

16588 

1658~ 

6 Unk~ m~ 

95+M%M 01+0441 i+S~p+97 

96.MT.M 0~di4l I 1-M~-98 

9?-M?-M 02-0441 1-M~-99 

E99.7-005 I-Aug+gg 

31-Dc~-97 

28-Feb-99 

30~Nov.99 

30M|y+99 

GRANT 
AW ARD 

25,236 (]) 

74.2~, (I) 

193.110 

9990-47 25.NOV.95 3.J~.99 

9950 02C ] -Nov-98 3L-M~-99 



 

ACCRUED/ 
{DEFERRED) 
REVENUE 
JUNE30,|998 

4,756 

4391 

FEDERAL AND STATE 
ASSISTANCE RECEIVED 

DURING YEAR 
GRANTS OTIIEE 

14,756 

4g.888 

16~ ?23 

27~r057 St025 

--  L 89n09~  lu230,379 

ACCRUED/ 
{DEFERRED) TOTAL 
REVENUE REVENUE 

JUNE30,1999 RECOGNIZED 

5~ 339 

4~ 7~b 

63o )o~ 

FEDERAL/STATE LOCAL 

44~497 

3~t ~ 2 

64082 [,03g 93g $25~ 3 219,997 

TOTAL 
EXPENDIIURES 

64092 1,326r729 Iti05,369 219022 
--  I 324 39~ 

864,486 S
= 6,917~  S 848,]40 S 1r641,221 $ 9~ ,~  $ 8~90,~  $ 5,447,174 $ I3,B3?,L74 
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JEFI, ERSON PARISH S]I[~2RIFF'S OFFICE 
C, RE] NA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIT URES OF FEDERAL+ STATE & LOCAL AW ARDS (CONTINUED] 
I~OR 1 lIE Ytar Ended June 30 1999 

~" UNI)ING AGENCY 
(;RANT 

S~AI E Am , LOCAl, A++ARDS 

I OUISSANA COMMISSION ON LAW ENFORCEMENT 

Aa ~62 ~W~ l~int.s Ac~ my F~.ip,~ nl 

Act 562 ~Y99 Training Academ~ Equlpmcnt 

"rural 

LOUISIANA DEPARI MEN7 OF PUBLIC SAFELY 

AAFIS Tl~nlm~ 

JEFFERSON pARISH COMMUNI IY IUSIICE AGENCY 
l PCC Corl~liooal T~ n+ng Vid~ 

Act 562 Fy99 Concction T~ nin8 Rcim~ lscmcat 

Act 562 ly99 B~ic TI~J nlng Rcimbu+cmcrn 

~o;.I 

RED RIVIR DELTA/LAW ENFORCEMENT PLANNING COUNCIL 

DARE Oilier 1 ~ining 

TOTAl STATE AND LOCAL A~'A RDS 

C P.AND 1OTAL 

Not t_s TO SCttEBVLZt 

lhls schedule ~  p rcpaccd m, the ~ 1 b~is of ae+ tl+~ All m lvRy bch+en July 
+t ionc~ICd +n (11~ ~chcdulc 

(2)- Gu t called ml 75% ~d~~l shm  I~1 $5 m~+ sh~~, ~  I0 15% local sham 

Ill. A,,ard ~p~scnt s the fM~ds to b~ paid JPSO undo, a C~ pcr~iv~ Agr~m~  
,..h t~ Sure 

141- The parish oF ]~ffe +,~ is the g,~  ~ hilt the JPSO is one of s~velat ~e~cics 

(M)- Rcp~s,nB a "Majot" giant uudcr OMB Chculat A 131 

CFDA 
NUM BER 

NYA 

NIA 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
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GRANT ID 
NUM BER 

p91~-8-005 

P99-$4)07 

(;RANT PERIOD 
FR'~ " ~'-O 

-1+1+97 

+Jul.9g 

30+Jun@[ 

30-1un-99 

(;RANT 
AW ARD 

6,000 

5.000 

Proj~~ C~lpletlon Rcimb~ cmcnt 

P+oj+a C~,pI*~Jon 

Projea Completion 

Projc~ Completion 

L,3~3 

Rcimbu~ ment 

Reimbursement 



 

ACCRUED/ 
IOEFERRED) 
REVENUE 
JUNE30, I998 

FEDERAL AND STALE 
ASSISTANCE RECEIVED 

DURING YEAR 
GRANTS OTIIER 

1373 

28o0 

4.500 

6000 

4,7o0 

ACCRUED/ 
(DEFERRED) TOTAL 
REVENUE REVENUE 

JUNE30,1999 RECOGN~ ED 

5,000 5TO~ 

~.7~3 

EXPENDITURES 
FEDERAL~TATE LOCAL 

TOTAL 
EXPENDITURES 

12r9~ 12,o00 

S 877,820 S 6,9S4,89] $ 848,240 $ Z,~7~22 $ 9,57],~  S 8,390,~  $ 5,~ 72 $ 13,8S6,572 
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JEFFERSON PARISII SItERIFF 
G retna. Louisiana 

M ISCELLANEO US STATISTICS 
Lasl 5 Years 

UNAUDITEI)) 

TABLE 14 

Form of Government Special Purpose ( Sheriff/Law Enforcement) 

Area ia Square M il~ 

Population-unlncorporated arras (estima|e 

Respot~es to Calls for Service 

Assigned Cas~ 

I nvestiga~td Case~ 

Deaths 

Traffic Tickets Issued 

Average R~ponae Time (in minul~) 

Crime Staltstics: 
M urders 
Rapes 
Robberies 
Assaults 

1oral Persons Crimes 

Butgtary 
qhefl 
Vehicle Theft 

]otalProperty Crimea 

TOq'AL 

Arson 

359 Land 
272 W ater 

June30.1999 June3O, 199g June30,1997 June30.1996 June30,1995 

23 
118 
684 
763 

3,984 
4,921 
3 003 

21.908 

28 
123 
812 
,852 

2,815 

3,905 
5.049 
3.167 

33 
131 
,026 
,87g 

16,926 
3,607 

24,760 

30 
142 

IA57 
2,012 

3,34 

4.420 
17,906 
3,629 

25.963 

343.505 

34 
167 

1,202 
2,069 

3,472 

4,890 
18,561 
3,417 

26,868 

EstimatedValueofl'ropertyStolen $ 51,427,52t $ 50,427,442 $ 50,431,648 $ 56,278,117 $ 44,790.03 

EstimaledValeofProperlyRecovered $ 16,042,083 $ 15,332,039 $ 16,506,587 $ 21,031,092 $ 17,928,95 

Crime Rate per 1,000 Residents 

Source: Jefferson Parish SherifPs Offi ce- Research & Analysis 
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REBOW E & C OM PANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCO UNTAN TS 

CO N SU LTA N TS 

A PROFESSIONAL CO RPORATION 

3501 N. Causeway Blvd. , Suito 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 ~ Metaide, LA 70009 
Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 637-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

IN DEPENDENT AU DITO R 'S REPO RT O N 
C O M PLIA N C E AN D O N IN TER NA L CO N TR O L O V ER  

FINAN CIA L RE PO RTIN G BASED ON AN  A UDIT 
O F FINAN CIA L STATEM ENTS PERFO RM ED 

IN A C C O RD AN C E W ITH  
G O VERN M EN T ,4 UD ITIN G STA ND ARD S 

The Honorable H arry Lee 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
G retna, Louisiana 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff, as of and for the years 
ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, an d have issued our report thereon dated Decem ber 17, 1999. 
W e conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Com ptroller G eneral of the United States. 

~qm__pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's general- 
purpose financial statem ents are free of m aterial m isstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its 
com plian ce with certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts and grants, noncom plian ce 
w ith which could have a direct an d m aterial effect on the determ ination of financial statem ent 
am ounts. However, providing an opinion on com pliance with th ose provisions was not an 
objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncom pliance th at ar e required to be reported under Governm ent 
Auditing Standards. 

nternal C ontrol Over Financial R enortin~ 

In plan ning an d perform ing our audits, we considered the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's intern al 
control over finan cial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statem ents and not to provide assurance on the internal 
control over finan cial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over finan cial 
reporting w ould not necessarily disclose all m atters in the internal control over finan cial 
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reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control com ponents does not reduce to a 
relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to 
the financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and not be detected within a tim ely period by 
em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be 
m aterial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation an d use of the Sheriff, m anagem ent, lhe 
Louisiana Legislative A uditor, and applicable federal and state awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the 
specified parties. 

Reeo~  ,~ ~  
Decem ber 17, 1999 
M etairie, Louisiana 
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R EBOW E & C OM PANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUN TA NTS 

CON SULTAN TS 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ RO. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 
Phone (504) 637-9116 , Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

INDEPFNDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITH RE QUIREM ENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EA CH M AJO R PR O G RA M  AND INTERN AL CO NTRO L O V ER 

COM PLIAN CE IN ACCORDANCE W ITH OM B CIRCULAR A -133 

The ttonorable Harry Lee 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff  
G retna, Louisiana 

Compliance 

W e have audited the com pliance of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff  with the types of com pliance 

requirements described in the U.,~ Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 1999. The Jefferson Parish Sheriff's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompan ying Schedule of Findings an d Questioned 
Costs. Com pliance with the requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts an d grants applicable to 
each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's 
m anagem ent. O ur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Jefferson Par ish Sheriff's 
compliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of com plian ce in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing stmadards; 
the standards applicable to finan cial audits contained.

in Government Auditing Standards., issued 

by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OM B Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that w e plan and perform  the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w hether 
noncom plian ce with the types of com plian ce requirem ents referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's com pliance with those requirem ents 
and perform ing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum stances. W e 
believe that oar  audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a 
legal determ ination on the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's com plian ce with those requirem ents. 

In our opinion, the Jefferson Par ish Sheriff  com plied, in all m aterial respects, w ith the 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 1999. 
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Intern al Control Over Comoliance 

The m anagem ent of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff is responsible for establishing and m aintaining 
effective intern al control over com pliance w ith requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to federal program s. In planning and perform ing our audit, w e considered the 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff's intern al control over com pliance with requirem ents that could have a 

direct an d material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on com pliance and to test and report on 
intern al control over com pliance in accordan ce w ith OM B Circular  A -133. 

O ur consideration of the internal control over com pliance would not necessarily disclose all 
m atters in the internal control that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control com ponents 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable 
requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts, and gran ts that would be m aterial in relation to a 
major federal program being audited may occur and to be detected within a timely period by 
em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters 
involving the internal control over com pliance and its operation that w e consider to be m aterial 
w eaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation of the Sheriff, m an agem ent, the Louisian a 
Legislative Auditor, and applicable federal agencies and pass-through entities, and is not 
intended to be an d should not be used by an yone other than the specified parties. 

Decem ber 17, 1999 
M etairie, Louisiana 
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JE FFERSO N PARISH SHERI FF 
GRETNA, I,OUISIANA 

SUM M ARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For the Y ear Ended June 30, 1999 

A. SUM M ARY O F AUDITO R'S RESULTS 

4 

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general-purpose 
financial statements of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff  

No material weaknesses or reportable conditions in internal control relating to the 
audit of the of the general-purpose financial statem ents are reported in the 
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Internal Control O ver 

Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Governm ent Audit Standards. 

No instances of noncom pliance m aterial to the general -purpose financial 
statem ents of the Jefferson parish Sheriff  are repo rted in the Auditor's Report on 
Compliance and on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an A udit 

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Audit 
Standards. 

No material weaknesses or reportable condi tions in internal control relating to 
the audit of major federal programs are repo rted in the Report on Compliance 
with Requirements Applicable to Each M ajor Program and on Internal Control 
Over Compliance in Accordance with OM B Circular A-133. 

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff expresses an unqualified opinion. 

The auditor's reports disclosed no findings that are required to be reported under 
OM B Circular A-133. 

7. The following programs were identified as major programs 

U.S. Departm ent of Justice 

Offi ce of Com m unity O riented Policing 
-COPS M ore 96 (Technology Grant) CFDA 16.710 
-COPS M ore 98 (Technology Grant) CFDA 16.710 

The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and Type B program s was 
$300,000. 

The Jefferson Parish Sheriff qualified as a low-risk auditee under the provisions 
of OM B Circular A-133. 
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FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE RE PORTED - FINANCIAL STATEM ENT 
AUDIT 

There were no findings as defined by Govern m ent Auditing Standards that are required to 
be reported in this section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

C. FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED - FEDERAL AW ARDS 

There were no audit findings as defined in OM B Circular A-133 that are required to 
be reported in this section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

D. SUM M A RY O F PRIO R YEA R 'S FIND IN G S 

There were no findings  related to federal awards for the year ended June 30, 1998 
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R EBOW E & C OM PAN Y 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN TS 

CO N SU LTA N TS 

3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P,O. Box 6952 ~ Metairie, LA 70009 
Phone (564) 837-9116 ~ Fax (504) 837-0123 ~ E-mail rebowe@rebowe.com 

The Honorable Harry Lee 
Jefferson Parish Sheriff 
G retna, Louisiana 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of the Jefferson Parish Sheriff, Gretna, Louisiana as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 1999 and 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated 
D ecem ber 17, 1999. A s part of our audit, we considered the Jefferson Parish Sheriff's internal 
control in order to determ ine the nature, tim ing, and extent of our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing opinions on the financial statem ents mad not to provide assurance on 
internal control. 

llowevcr, during our audits we becam e aware of a m atter that is an opportunity for strengthening 
internal control and operating efficiency. The m em orandum that accom panies this letter 
sum m arizes our com m ents and recom m endations regarding this m atter. W e previously reported 
on the Jefferson Parish SherifFs internal control in a separately issued report entitled Report on 
Com pliance and on Internal Control Over Financial reporting Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statem ents Perform ed in Accordance with Governm ent Auditing Standards, dated Decem ber 17, 
1999 and noted no m aterial w eaknesses. 

W e will review the status of this m atter during our next audit engagem ent. W e have already 
discussed these com m ents and recom m endations with Jefferson Parish SherifFs O ffice 
m anagem ent and would be pleased to discuss tbem  with you in further detail at your convenience 
or to assist you in im plem enting our recom m endations. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the Sheriff, m anagem ent, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Decem ber 17, 1999 
M etairie, Louisiana 



Com m ent: 

Year 2000 Com puter Issue 

The Year 2000 Issue results from a computer's inability to process year-date data accurately 
beyond the year 1999. Except in recently introduced Year 2000 com pliant program s, computer 
program m ers consistently have abbreviated dates by elim inating the first two digits of the year, 
w ith tile assum ption that these two digits would alw ays be 19. Thus January 1, 1965, becam e 
01/01/65. Unless corrected, this shortcut is expected to create widespread problem s when the 
clock strikes 12:00:01 a.m . on January 1, 2000. On that date, som e com puter program s m ay 
recognize the date as January 1, 1900, and process data inaccurately or stop processing 
altogether. 

The Year 2000 Issue is likely to affect com puter applications before January 1, 2000, when 
system s currently attem pt to perform calculations into the year 2000. Furtherm ore, som e 
software program s use several dates in the year 1999 to m ean som ething other than file date. 
Exanlples of such dates are 01/01/99, 09/09/99, and 12/31/99. A s system s process using these 
dates, they m ay produce erratic results or stop functioning. 

The Year 2000 Issue presents another challenge. The algorithm used in som e com puters for 
calculating leap years is unable to detect that the Year 2000 is a leap year. Therefore, system s 
that are not Year 2000 compliant m ay not register the additional day, and date calculations m ay 
be incorrect. 

M anagem ent is aw are of the Year 2000 Issues and has identified som e shortcom ings in the Tax 
Collector's electronic data processing system used to access, collect and distribute the various 
taxes, fines, and fees, and com m issions. The Sheriff's payroll system is also vulnerable to the 
Y2K "bug". M any of the potential problem s involving "m ission-critical" system s have already 
been addressed by the introduction of a new information system designed to m ore thoroughly 
m eet tile reporting requirem ents of m anagem ent. In addition, the use of consultants augm ented 
the efforts of the Sheriff's M anagem ent Inform ation System departm ent in directing the 

The Sheriff has com pleted its awareness, assessm ent, and rem ediation states for all its m ission- 
critical system s and electronic equipm ent. The validation / testing stage is in progress and is 
expected to be com pleted by Decem ber 31, 1999. 



Recom m endation 

W e recom m end the Sheriff's Offi ce continue their efforts in com pleting the validation / testing 
stage. W e also recom m end m anagem ent continue to m onitor these efforts. 

M anagem ent Response 

M anagem ent believes their efforts, described within the Com prehensive A nnual Financial 
Report-Required Supplem entary Inform ation, w ill enable the Sheriff to process date and or dale- 
related inform ation correctly before, during, and after January 1, 2000. Itow ever, because of the 
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of the related rem ediation 
efforts w ill not be fully determ inable until the year 2000 and thereafter. M anagem ent cannot 
assure that the Sheriff  is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Sheriff's rcm ediation efforts w ill be 
successful in w hole or in part, or thai parties w ith whona the Sheriff does business w ith will be 
year 2000 ready. 


